
1 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING  
AND POSSIBLE EXECUTIVE SESSION OF THE     

STATE OF ARIZONA 
CITIZENS CLEAN ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

 

Location:   Citizens Clean Elections Commission    

1616 West Adams, Suite 110     

Phoenix, Arizona 85007     

Date:  Thursday, November 16, 2017              

Time:     9:30 a. m. 

 Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Commissioners of the Citizens Clean Elections 

Commission and the general public that the Citizens Clean Elections Commission will hold a regular meeting, which 

is open to the public on November 16, 2017.  This meeting will be held at 9:30 a.m., at the Citizens Clean Elections 

Commission, 1616 West Adams, Suite 110, Phoenix, Arizona 85007.  The meeting may be available for live 

streaming online at www.livestream.com/cleanelections.  Members of the Citizens Clean Elections Commission will 

attend either in person or by telephone, video, or internet conferencing. 

The Commission may vote to go into executive session, which will not be open to the public, for the purpose of 

obtaining legal advice on any item listed on the agenda, pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03 (A)(3).  The Commission 

reserves the right at its discretion to address the agenda matters in an order different than outlined below. 

Possible action on any Matter Under Review (MUR) identified in this agenda may include authorizing or 

entering into a conciliation agreement with subject of the MUR, in addition to any other actions, such as 

finding reason to believe a violation has occurred, finding probable cause to believe a violation has occurred, 

applying penalties, ordering the repayment of monies to the Clean Elections Fund, or terminating a 

proceeding.  

 

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:  

I. Call to Order. 

II. Discussion and Possible Action on Commission Minutes for September 28, 2017 meeting. 

III. Discussion and Possible Action on Executive Director’s Report. 

IV. Discussion and Possible Action on MUR 17-01 Jesus Rubacalva. 

V. Discussion and Possible Action on MUR  17 -02 and 17-03 American Federation for Children. 

  

 
 



2 

 

VI. Discussion and possible action on Clean Elections Surcharge and related issues with the Arizona 

Administrative Office of the Courts.  

The Commission may choose to go into executive session on Item VI for discussion or consultation with its 

attorneys to consider its position and instruct its attorneys regarding the public body's position regarding 

contracts, in pending or contemplated litigation or in settlement discussions conducted in order to avoid or 

resolve litigation.  A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4). 

VII. Discussion and Possible Action on Executive Director’s request for authorization to enter 

Intergovernmental Agreement with Maricopa County for Voter and Public Education purposes.   

VIII. Discussion and Possible Action on the 2018 Legislative Agenda: 

IX. Discussion and Possible Action on the 2018 Commission meeting dates. 

X. Public Comment 

This is the time for consideration of comments and suggestions from the public.  Action taken as a result of 

public comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter or rescheduling the matter for further 

consideration and decision at a later date or responding to criticism 

XI. Adjournment. 

This agenda is subject to change up to 24 hours prior to the meeting.  A copy of the agenda background 

material provided to the Commission (with the exception of material relating to possible executive 

sessions) is available for public inspection at the Commission’s office, 1616 West Adams, Suite 110, 

Phoenix, Arizona 85007. 

      Dated this 14
th

 day of November, 2017.  

 

      Citizens Clean Elections Commission 

      Thomas M. Collins, Executive Director 

 

Any person with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter, 

by contacting the Commission at (602) 364-3477.  Requests should be made as early as possible to allow 

time to arrange accommodations. 



Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440  www.coashandcoash.com

Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings - September 28, 2017
Public Session

1

 
  1

 2

 3

 4  THE STATE OF ARIZONA

 5    CITIZENS CLEAN ELECTIONS COMMISSION

 6

 7

 8

 9

10  REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PUBLIC MEETING

11

12

13

14    Phoenix, Arizona

15   September 28, 2017

16  9:30 a.m.

17

18

19

20

21   COASH & COASH, INC.
 Court Reporting, Video & Videoconferencing

22   1802 North 7th Street, Phoenix, AZ 85006
  602-258-1440     staff@coashandcoash.com

23

24   Prepared by:
  LILIA MONARREZ, CSR, RPR

25   Certificate No. 50699

ITEM II

db
Text Box

db
Text Box

db
Text Box



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

Page 2

 1         PUBLIC MEETING BEFORE THE CITIZENS CLEAN
  ELECTIONS COMMISSION convened at 9:30 a.m. on

 2  September 28, 2017, at the State of Arizona, Clean
  Elections Commission, 1616 West Adams, Conference Room,

 3  Phoenix, Arizona, in the presence of the following Board
  members:

 4 Mr. Steve M. Titla, Chairperson
Mr. Mark S. Kimble

 5 Mr. Damien Meyer
Ms. Amy B. Chan

 6 Mr. Galen D. Paton

 7  OTHERS PRESENT:

 8 Thomas M. Collins, Executive Director
Paula Thomas, Executive Officer

 9 Gina Roberts, Voter Education Director
Sara Larsen, Financial Affairs Officer

10 Mike Becker, Policy Director
Alec Shaffer, Web Content Manager

11 Christina Stone, RIESTER
Paula Bickett, AZ Attorney General's Office

12 Jeffrey Ong, Senate
Zoe K. Dean, Senate

13 Rivko Knox, AZ League of Women Voters
Mary O'Grady, Osborn Maledon

14 Garrett Archer, SOS IT Manager
Lisette Flores, AZ State Senate

15 Joel Edman, AZAW

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

09:30:37-09:31:33 Page 3

 1      P R O C E E D I N G
 2  
 3      CHAIRMAN TITLA: The Clean Elections
 4  Commission meeting is called to order, Thursday,
 5  September 28, 2017, 9:30 a.m.
 6      We will go to the -- that's the first item.
 7  The second item is discussion and possible action on
 8  commission minutes from the August 31, 2017 meeting.
 9      Commissioners, had a chance to take a look
10  at them?
11      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Mr. Chairman?
12      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Kimble.
13      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: I move we approve the
14  minutes for the Commission meeting of August 31st,
15  2017.
16      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Okay.  There's a motion by
17  Commissioner Kimble to pass the minutes.
18      COMMISSIONER PATON: Second.
19      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Second by Commissioner
20  Paton.
21      All in favor say aye.
22      (Chorus of ayes.)
23      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Opposed?
24      (No response.)
25      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Abstain?

09:31:33-09:32:57 Page 4

 1      (No response.)
 2      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Motion passes unanimously.
 3      Let's go to the third item, discussion and
 4  possible action on the executive director's report.
 5      Tom?
 6      MR. COLLINS: Yes.  Commissioner --
 7  Chairman Titla, Commissioners, just real quick, we
 8  had -- the National Voter Registration Day was Tuesday,
 9  and we partnered with the ASU undergraduate student
10  government and hosted a voter registration event there.
11      We previewed -- or didn't really preview.
12  We launched -- well, we didn't -- we already launched.
13  So, I guess -- what's the word I'm looking for?  We
14  used.  We used our chatbot as part of a civics trivia
15  opportunity for students to test their knowledge, and
16  that was very popular.  We think we registered
17  somewhere between 40 and 50 voters which is nice.  And
18  we distributed voter education materials for the same
19  event to Yuma and the Arizona Center for Disability
20  Law.
21      The -- I think the whole thing was -- was a
22  really -- was a really great opportunity for us, and I
23  think the chatbot is really an exciting way we're
24  engaging -- you know, we've talked about this at our
25  roundtable, but we're engaging Gen Z and millennials

09:33:02-09:34:21 Page 5

 1  where they're at with that, and that can be used
 2  flexibly to provide both election information and other
 3  information.
 4      We've got -- there are elections coming up,
 5  and the next voter registration deadline for bonds,
 6  over- -- those are mostly bonds, overrides, those kinds
 7  of things.  They're on -- so the next voter
 8  registration deadline is October 10th.
 9      You can see the candidate information.  I
10  wanted to briefly mention -- and I think -- I think all
11  you know this.  The Arizona Supreme Court held oral
12  arguments in the Legacy Foundation Action Fund versus
13  Clean Elections Commission on September 11th, and that
14  link there will take you to that.  If you haven't had a
15  chance to watch that argument, I do -- do recommend you
16  check it out.  It's fairly brief.
17      And I think Joe Roth from Osborn Maledon
18  did a very good job of arguing our position which, you
19  know, just so everybody in the public and in the
20  Commission, everybody -- and the Commission knows this,
21  but the public understands that the issue in that case
22  is not really a Clean Elections issue.  It's a
23  jurisdictional issue under Title 12 and the civil -- in
24  terms of how civil proceedings are handled from -- from
25  administrative actions.

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(1) Pages 2 - 5



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

09:34:23-09:35:49 Page 6

 1      Finally, there's an update there.  Last
 2  week the Republic -- well, Secretary Reagan, I should
 3  say, reported on reports she had received from the U.S.
 4  Department of Homeland Security which seemed to provide
 5  a little more detail to the -- what happened last -- or
 6  summer of 2016.  You may recall that E-Qual and --
 7  well, the voter registration system itself and then
 8  because of that E-Qual, we were offline.  We had some
 9  meetings -- at least one meeting to address that.
10      So that summary is designed to keep you as
11  up to date as we can, as far as the information the
12  Secretary's office has put out, along with the
13  background from what happened in 2016 there.  So that's
14  there for your -- your information.  I don't really
15  have a lot to add to it other than, I guess, the best
16  way to understand, at least from what I can tell the
17  DHS notice is that it seems to be sort of an official
18  confirmation and perhaps provides more detail through
19  the Secretary's office, but DHS has made clear that it
20  will be up to each Secretary to provide whatever detail
21  they think is necessary.
22      But, you know, I think that the most
23  important point to take away is that really important
24  from a -- from our perspective, obviously, we have an
25  interest in the voter registration system because of

09:35:51-09:36:50 Page 7

 1  E-Qual and because of our packet and all those other
 2  things, but from a voter perspective, which is the
 3  other part of our mandate in working with voters, the
 4  two -- the two takeaways that I think are most
 5  important is that, number one, the Secretary's office
 6  has said all along and continues to say that there was
 7  no breach of the system that actually occurred, which I
 8  think is terribly important.
 9      And I think the other thing that the
10  Secretary's office has stressed, which I think is
11  equally important to stress for us, is that none of
12  this involved election results.  We're talking about an
13  effort to try to backdoor your way into a voter
14  registration system that's got nothing to do with the
15  actual results of elections.  And I think that those
16  two messages which the Secretary has communicated are
17  equally important for you to be aware of and for us to
18  communicate.
19      So unless you have any questions, that
20  completes my executive director's report.
21      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Any questions for
22  Mr. Collins, Commissioners?
23      COMMISSIONER PATON: I have a question.
24      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Paton?
25      COMMISSIONER PATON: So on the 2018

09:36:51-09:38:07 Page 8

 1  candidate information, you have listed participating
 2  candidates.
 3      Is that normal?  Above?  Below?
 4      MR. COLLINS: I guess I'd defer to Sara.  I
 5  think that -- I think it's -- I don't think it's -- I
 6  don't think it's out of line at this point.  The thing
 7  is that -- well, I don't know -- well, Sara, do you
 8  want to get up and address that?  It might be easier.
 9      I'd defer to Sara on that question.
10      MS. LARSEN: Chairman, Commissioner Paton,
11  I would say that it's on average.  We really won't know
12  until probably the spring sometime really what a good
13  idea the number of participating candidates that we're
14  really going to have.  So these are people who are just
15  interested in just getting going on the process.  We
16  don't know how many are actually going to apply for
17  funding and how many will be funded, but I would say
18  that it's a good start on the participating numbers.
19      COMMISSIONER PATON: So initially they --
20  what do they do to tell you that they're kind of
21  interested?
22      MS. LARSEN: Chairman, Commissioner Paton,
23  how they tell us that they're interested is they file
24  an application for certification to be a participating
25  candidate.

09:38:08-09:38:54 Page 9

 1      COMMISSIONER PATON: Okay.
 2      MS. LARSEN: So they actually take an
 3  active step to say I want to be a Clean Elections
 4  candidate and that's how I'm going to fund my campaign.
 5      COMMISSIONER PATON: So whether they follow
 6  through will happen later?
 7      MS. LARSEN: Right.  It will, you know,
 8  depend on how many actually qualify to be on the
 9  ballot.  So they still have collect their petition
10  signatures and qualify to be on the ballot in order to
11  receive funding.  So --
12      COMMISSIONER PATON: Yeah.
13      MS. LARSEN: So we still have some time to
14  go to see how many participating candidates we are
15  going to have.
16      COMMISSIONER PATON: I was just curious
17  since we had people saying things were difficult or
18  whatever.  I just wanted to see if that was normal.
19      MS. LARSEN: Yeah.  And, Chairman,
20  Commissioner Paton, I would say that it's -- it's a
21  good start in our numbers.
22      COMMISSIONER PATON: Okay.  Thank you.
23      CHAIRMAN TITLA: More questions, comments,
24  Commissioners?
25      (No answer.)

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(2) Pages 6 - 9



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

09:38:54-09:39:48 Page 10

 1      CHAIRMAN TITLA: If not -- do we need a
 2  motion to approve --
 3      MR. COLLINS: No, no.  I don't think
 4  there's a -- I don't think there's a motion, other
 5  than, you know, it is a -- do you mind if I -- go
 6  ahead?
 7      The other -- the other thing I'd like to
 8  report which is breaking news is that today is
 9  Commissioner Chan's birthday.  So if we all have an
10  opportunity to wish her happy birthday, you should do
11  that.
12      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Thank you.
13      MR. COLLINS: I don't know if you want a
14  motion on that.
15      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Happy birthday,
16  Commissioner Chan.
17      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Thank you.
18      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Okay.  Let's go on to the
19  fourth item, discussion and possible action on the rule
20  amendment proposals, A, R2-20-402-01, random audits of
21  participating legislative candidates, approved for
22  public comment on June 22nd of 2017.
23      Mr. Collins?
24      MR. COLLINS: Oh, yes.  I'm sorry.  Yes,
25  Commissioner -- or Chairman, Commissioners, so -- how

09:39:54-09:41:12 Page 11

 1  do we have this set up?  So we have two rules and we
 2  have two different actions we'd like taken on them.
 3  And just for your -- just as an FYI, you know, Paula
 4  Bickett from the Attorney General's Office, she's the
 5  chief appellate counsel there and supervises Kara and
 6  Joe who are the day-to-day attorneys and, you know, is
 7  my supervisor there.
 8      She's with us today just in case we have
 9  procedural questions or other questions.  Kara and Joe
10  are wrapped up in a trial.  So Paula is here.  She's --
11  so if we have any questions, she'll be more than --
12  she's beyond qualified to answer our questions, but in
13  any event, she's here to make sure we have coverage.
14      There's two issues, and I guess we'll have
15  to -- I'd like to take them serially.  The first issue
16  is R2-20-402.01.  R2-20-402.01, in effect -- well,
17  takes a rule we passed, I think, at the end of last
18  year and expands it to all legislative candidates.  And
19  that rule says that if you take clean funding, you're
20  going to be subject to an audit.  That audit is the
21  same audit that we did on a random basis in the past.
22  And we did 29 of those in 2016, but this would mean
23  basically all candidates would be subject to random
24  audit.
25      We think that this, coupled with some of

09:41:15-09:42:24 Page 12

 1  the bookkeeping rules that we've already passed, will
 2  put us in a position where it's going to be difficult
 3  to game the system because there will be people looking
 4  at both ends of the spectrum in terms of when the money
 5  comes in and when the money goes out.
 6      As we all know -- or we should all know at
 7  this point, campaign finance reports are not -- the
 8  campaign finance reporting system is not a bank.  It
 9  reflects what people reported, and so, you know, one of
10  the things that the -- that the Clean Elections system
11  does that benefits voter confidence is ensures that
12  candidates are living up to the expectations that are
13  set for them by the act.
14      So we think this is an important rule.  We
15  circulated it for public comment.  I don't think we got
16  a single comment one way or the other on it.  We don't
17  think this will be a significant additional burden
18  because we set this rule up so that if you lose in the
19  primary, you get audited after the primary.  And if you
20  lose in the general, you get audited for the primary
21  and the general.  So nobody is going to get audited --
22  the way we formerly did it is it didn't matter if you
23  won the primary or not.  You might be in the primary
24  hopper.
25      So this is actually, for candidates, a more

09:42:27-09:43:28 Page 13

 1  efficient way to do it even though all of them are now
 2  going to be exposed to an audit.  And so we'd ask that
 3  you approve this for final publication and adoption as
 4  a rule.  So that would be -- the motion would be to
 5  final -- for final approval of R2-20-4.0 -- 402.01.
 6      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Any questions?
 7      MR. COLLINS: Unless you have questions.
 8      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Comments?
 9      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Mr. Chairman?
10      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Chan.
11      COMMISSIONER CHAN: I would like to say
12  that I do support this rule.  The only comment that I
13  wanted to make is just that initially when staff
14  explained the -- the proposal, I was a little concerned
15  that it might discourage folks from running as clean
16  candidates, but I think the fact that it's only a
17  random audit won't discourage people.  And I think it
18  does help ensure the integrity of our system, so I
19  would fully support the adoption of the rule.
20      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Any other comments?
21  Commissioner?
22      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Just to clarify, it's
23  not a random, right?  Everyone is getting audited,
24  right?
25      MR. COLLINS: That's correct.  Yes.

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(3) Pages 10 - 13



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

09:43:28-09:44:18 Page 14

 1  Exactly.
 2      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Okay.
 3      MR. COLLINS: Exactly.  The --
 4      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Or -- I'm sorry.  Yes.
 5      COMMISSIONER MEYER: I think --
 6      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Pardon me.  Pardon me.
 7  I misspoke.  Thank you.
 8      MR. COLLINS: Yeah.  The audit itself, just
 9  to -- if it goes to the -- sort of the underlying
10  question is the audit is not a -- it's not a full
11  audit.  Like, we've done full audits when we've had to
12  do an enforcement action and that kind of thing.  What
13  this does is we take specific transactions.  I mean, I
14  think we're going to focus, we've already said, on
15  party transactions.  We're going to focus on other
16  transactions.
17      We have other things that we look for --
18  petty cash, whether or not there's a legal defense fund
19  set up, those kinds of things.  And we do that on an
20  administrative basis, working with the auditors to
21  set -- set up what are called -- and there's an
22  auditing term that I'm going to now forget -- scope of
23  work and the agreed-upon procedures for the audit.
24      And -- and so we do that on an
25  administrative basis, but basically, you know, we think

09:44:21-09:45:31 Page 15

 1  that if you're -- if you're monkeying around in the
 2  system, this is going to do -- and we think most people
 3  are not, to be honest with you, but this will make sure
 4  that anybody who does choose to engage in that kind of
 5  thing is not going to -- is going to be -- going to
 6  face a much less likelihood of getting away with it.
 7      COMMISSIONER PATON: I have a question.
 8      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Paton.
 9      COMMISSIONER PATON: So the term "random"
10  here doesn't refer to you're randomly selected.  It's
11  the actual receipt or whatever expenditure is random
12  within the document?
13      MR. COLLINS: I think that that's a fair
14  reading of the heading.
15      COMMISSIONER PATON: Because I was kind of
16  confused by that myself.
17      MR. COLLINS: Yeah.  No, I think that's a--
18  I think that's a fair reading of the heading.  I think
19  we could probably change the heading without making a
20  significant change to the substance of the rules when
21  we publish them.  I think -- I don't -- so whatever
22  your pleasure is in terms of whether or not -- if you
23  think "random" is unclear there --
24      COMMISSIONER PATON: Yeah.
25      MR. COLLINS: -- I don't think that would

09:45:32-09:46:38 Page 16

 1  be a -- that's not a -- that's not a substantive
 2  change.  I don't think that would require any sort of
 3  recirculation, but it would be a clean-up change.  So
 4  certainly if you wanted to edit out that -- that term
 5  from the heading and just say "audits of participating
 6  legislative candidates," you know, we could -- we
 7  could -- we could adopt it that way without any serious
 8  procedural problem.  So it's really -- it's really up
 9  to you-all as commissioners.
10      COMMISSIONER PATON: Yeah.  Somehow I think
11  that needs to be addressed.
12      MR. COLLINS: Okay.  Well, in that case --
13      COMMISSIONER PATON: Because it's confusing
14  to me.
15      MR. COLLINS: Sure.
16      COMMISSIONER PATON: And, obviously, it was
17  confusing to Commissioner Chan.  So --
18      MR. COLLINS: I think, Mr. Chairman,
19  Commissioner Paton, in that case, I would recommend
20  that since there hasn't been a motion made yet, that
21  the motion simply be to adopt the rule along with
22  excluding the word "random" from the heading.  So it's
23  essentially adopt R2-20-402.01 except for the word
24  "random" in the heading.  And I think that that --
25  again, because that's not a substantive change to the

09:46:41-09:47:28 Page 17

 1  rule, I don't think that's a serious problem.
 2      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Any more comments,
 3  Commissioners?
 4      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Mr. Chairman?
 5      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Kimble.
 6      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: I would -- I would so
 7  moved, based on Mr. Collins' recommendation, that we
 8  adopt Rule R2-20-402-01 striking in the title the word
 9  "random."  So the title would read "audits of
10  participating legislative candidates."
11      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Okay.  There's a motion by
12  Commissioner Kimble.
13      Is there a second?
14      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Second.
15      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Second, Commissioner
16  Meyer.
17      All in favor say aye.
18      (Chorus of ayes.)
19      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Opposed?
20      (No response.)
21      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Abstain?
22      (No response.)
23      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Motion is passed
24  unanimously, and we go to B.
25      MR. COLLINS: Right.  Yes.  So,

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(4) Pages 14 - 17



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

09:47:30-09:49:00 Page 18

 1  Mr. Chairman, if I may.  So the changes here start
 2  on -- start with letter G.  This is a draft we'll be
 3  finalizing into the notice format that you see in the
 4  other -- in the other -- in the other document.  So
 5  I'll just walk you through the changes, if I may.
 6      First, under G, you know, that's a clean-up
 7  that -- in terms of the statutory citation change and
 8  the, you know, removal of surplus language.  We're
 9  adding Section 2.  It's underlined, but the underlining
10  doesn't go all the way through, but that -- underlining
11  2 should -- should be -- it's a signal.  And we'll
12  correct that in the final published version for --
13  which, again, it's just for public comment that all
14  general funds not committed to expenditures during the
15  general election period and for goods and services
16  directed to the general election.
17      That's a -- that's new language to clarify
18  that -- that, you know, again, the general funds have
19  to be committed to general election period funding --
20  what's that? -- and returned if they're not.  So that,
21  too, should have -- the underlining should have gone
22  all the way across and it will in the final version we
23  circulate for -- for public comment.
24      Section H, all funds returned to the
25  Commission pursuant to Subsection (G) shall be returned

09:49:04-09:50:23 Page 19

 1  to the Fund by a cashier's check drawn on the
 2  candidate's campaign bank account and any fee is deemed
 3  a direct campaign expenditure.  So what does that rule
 4  do?  That's a -- all these rules are of a piece --
 5  they're housekeeping rules.
 6      One of the issues that we face from an
 7  administrative perspective when we wrap up Clean
 8  Elections campaigns is that candidates will write us a
 9  check with the remainder, but it is administratively
10  inefficient to send checks one by one to the -- to the
11  state office that processes the checks.  So we end up
12  having to hold them in a batch for efficiency purposes.
13  That -- as a consequence, candidates occasionally face
14  bank fees because they've got these outstanding checks.
15  So if they close out their accounts with cashier's
16  checks, their accounts are closed and they've got
17  nothing else to worry about and we can more efficiently
18  process the checks on a batch basis.
19      Letter I, if a participating candidate does
20  not account for outstanding expenditures in the amount
21  of funds returned to the Commission, the candidate must
22  reconcile the outstanding expenditures with personal
23  monies and they may not exceed the per -- the primary
24  general election spending limits.  So what that says
25  is -- essentially, we've had a couple of instances

09:50:25-09:51:41 Page 20

 1  where candidates have come back, in some cases, months
 2  after the campaigns have closed out and said, hey, I
 3  forgot to note that I had this bill and I've got to pay
 4  it and I need the Fund to reimburse me for this because
 5  of a campaign expense.
 6      And that's not efficient for the Fund and
 7  this reinforces on candidates that they've got to be on
 8  top of their bookkeeping just like the audit rules do
 9  and the other things -- steps we're taking, but it also
10  makes clear that they can't use this rule to exceed the
11  spending limits they've agreed to.  So they've got to
12  be on top of things.  And the rules we passed a couple
13  of months ago about needing to get invoices up front
14  and all that kind of stuff, they should have a better
15  handle on this based on all the rules.
16      The rules, if you will, that we've passed
17  over the course of the last couple of -- over the last
18  six months or so have all been designed to -- on the
19  one hand, you know, they are demonstrating to
20  candidates that they bear a responsibility, but on the
21  other hand, they are demonstrating to clean candidates
22  that, you know, there are -- if they follow the rules,
23  they won't have these issues arise.  And that's what
24  we're trying to do is create, essentially, prophylactic
25  rules that say, look, do this by the book and you're

09:51:44-09:53:29 Page 21

 1  not going to have this come up, but this has come up in
 2  the past and it's just not an efficient use of the Fund
 3  to be going in and out for, you know, a couple of
 4  hundred dollars that ought to have been accounted for
 5  before monies are returned.
 6      And then, finally, Subsection J deals with
 7  a specific issue which is occasionally, whether it's
 8  through an audit or a return of funds, the cost of
 9  collecting or cashing that check actually exceeds the
10  amount of the return.  And given that the -- the
11  Commission's rule is to see that money is expended from
12  the Fund as it should be and not otherwise, you know,
13  that kind of fiduciary-like language means that, you
14  know, when the Fund is making expenditures that are
15  greater than the value of the income, right, that
16  there's a balance.  It means that it's better to just
17  let those go as de minimus -- de minimus returns and
18  the Commission would be notified on those waivers.
19      So taken together, what these rules G2, H,
20  I and J, as well as the clean-up of G1, essentially
21  will -- are largely bureaucratic rules, but they
22  bookend the rules we're working on in terms of the
23  invoicing and the auditing to make sure that clean
24  candidates are on top of their game.  And, you know, as
25  I often say, you know, clean candidates face more

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(5) Pages 18 - 21



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

09:53:32-09:54:42 Page 22

 1  scrutiny than any other candidate or any independent
 2  spender in the system, and so I think this is a good --
 3  a good step to close that out.  It resolves that.
 4      And, again, I would stress this is only for
 5  public comment so we're going to -- we will take these
 6  rules.  We will put them in a formal notice document
 7  that we'll submit to the Secretary of State's Office
 8  for publication, but we would ask that you approve
 9  Items G, H -- well, a guess I would just say the
10  amendments to R2-20-2 --106 for public comment.
11      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Mr. Chairman?
12      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Chan.
13      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Mr. Chairman, Tom, I
14  have a question about J3 contains an "and" which makes
15  me think -- should that be an "or"?  And then on Number
16  4, I'm just not sure what that means:  "The Commission
17  is notified" --
18      MR. COLLINS: Well --
19      COMMISSIONER CHAN: We may waive the return
20  of funds if the Commission is notified of any waiver
21  the return of funds?  I'm not sure what that means.
22      MR. COLLINS: So the way -- Commissioner --
23  Chairman Titla, Commissioner Chan, the way we
24  envisioned this working is that first the staff would
25  determine the amount to be de minimus, and they would

09:54:45-09:56:18 Page 23

 1  do that by determining the cost for recovery exceeds
 2  the amount returned.  There's a limit of $25.  So, in
 3  other words, in no event would a return in excess of
 4  $25 be considered de minimus.
 5      And then the Commission would receive
 6  notice likely in the form of either an email from staff
 7  or in the executive director's report that this waiver
 8  had occurred.  So that you're aware of the -- you know,
 9  of that.  And that would be the process.  In other
10  words, you know, it's not a -- it's not an approval
11  type of a rule.  It's more of an FYI, we've done this,
12  which provides an opportunity, obviously, for the
13  Commission to weigh in if it wants to, but the -- the
14  thought would be that, you know, we do feel like we're
15  obligated -- we provide notice to you about when we
16  close out enforcements under the executive director's
17  authority, those kinds of things.
18      It's really an FYI that we've done this.
19  We don't know how often this is going to come up.  We
20  think rarely because, frankly, in our experience, this
21  has come up not often.  And so we just think that --
22  but it does help us with ticky-tack issues that may
23  arise in an audit or in a -- at the end of a campaign.
24  And then you'll know that that happened and we can keep
25  track of it that way.

09:56:19-09:57:27 Page 24

 1      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Okay.  Thank you.
 2      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Any further comments,
 3  Commissioners?
 4      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Mr. Chairman?
 5      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Meyer.
 6      COMMISSIONER MEYER: I have a few comments
 7  on -- starting with Section G.  Is there a deadline
 8  that we want to put in here for the time in which they
 9  need to return the funds?
10      MR. COLLINS: I think -- I think that
11  deadline is set in -- I'm looking to Sara.  I think
12  it's within 10 days?  Is that correct?
13      COMMISSIONER MEYER: In E?
14      MR. COLLINS: And so that's in E.
15      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Okay.  And then on
16  Subsection I, does the rule essentially say, you know,
17  once a clean candidate returns the unused funds you're
18  not going to give them back to pay for any more
19  expenses?
20      MR. COLLINS: That's essentially correct,
21  with the caveat that they still have to follow the
22  agreement in terms of their own limits.  In other
23  words, they are limited severely on how much personal
24  money they can spend and/or how much seed money they
25  can spend and they're not allowed to spend that money

09:57:27-09:58:34 Page 25

 1  after the process.  So they could face -- so if this
 2  was a serious amount of money, they would face
 3  potential enforcement for violating those -- those
 4  statues.
 5      And Sara can detail that a little more.
 6      MS. LARSEN: Yeah.  Chairman, Commissioner
 7  Meyer, candidates also, when these return of funds are
 8  determined, they have a campaign finance report that's
 9  due.  It's a Clean Elections campaign finance report.
10  So we know the amount of money that candidates need to
11  return to the Clean Elections Fund, and when they file
12  that campaign finance report, they're certifying that
13  they have accounted for all of their transactions for
14  that reporting period.
15      So that is how we have, you know, our best
16  knowledge of -- of all the transactions that have
17  occurred and this is the money coming back to us.  So
18  if they are on top of all of their expenditures, they
19  should have all of their expenditures accounted for in
20  those campaign finance reports and they should be true
21  and accurate at that time and the amount that they
22  return to us should be correct.
23      In the past, we have had candidates come
24  back to us months later and say, oh, I received this
25  late bill and I need to have this paid for.  Well, that

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(6) Pages 22 - 25



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

09:58:39-09:59:42 Page 26

 1  causes an internal problem in our office because we
 2  have to go through a special process to have checks cut
 3  to candidates, and it's quite lengthy.  It's an
 4  involved process, and so we have to go through and have
 5  that done and get a check returned back to them and
 6  then they have to have their finance report amended.
 7      So this, essentially, would say when you
 8  file that campaign finance report to return your funds,
 9  that you are accounting for all of your campaign
10  finance activity for that election cycle.  And they
11  should know all of -- you know, anything that's
12  outstanding.  And we do have a rule that allows them to
13  hold for 30 days an amount of money for bills that
14  might come in.  They just need to let us know that they
15  have an amount outstanding for -- for bills that might
16  come in late or that they haven't received yet.
17      So we already do have a rule for that.  So
18  this really just shores up that, that they stay on top
19  of their books and that they really are accounting for
20  all of their expenditures in their campaign finance
21  reports.
22      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Mr. Chairman?
23      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Meyer.
24      COMMISSIONER MEYER: I agree with all of
25  that.  I suggest that we consider putting something in

09:59:45-10:00:44 Page 27

 1  the rule and make it more clear that once you return
 2  the funds, you can't come back to the Commission and
 3  ask for it to pay bills that you didn't submit.  I
 4  understand -- I think we could maybe clear that up a
 5  little bit because it's kind of implicit in the rule
 6  and maybe we can make it more explicit.  That's the
 7  only -- that was where I was going with that.
 8      MR. COLLINS: And, Mr. Chairman,
 9  Commissioner Meyer, we can do that now given that we
10  haven't circulated these at all.  I mean, we can add a
11  sentence to H that say -- or I, rather, if a
12  participating candidate does not account for the --
13  must reconcile.  We could add, between "participating
14  candidate," no further reimbursements will be
15  permitted.
16      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Yeah.  Mr. Chairman,
17  I'm not saying you need to draft it now.
18      MR. COLLINS: Okay.
19      COMMISSIONER MEYER: I just thought it was
20  a suggestion to make --
21      MR. COLLINS: Okay.  Well, I guess -- I
22  guess what I -- I guess what I'm try to say is it would
23  be easier to add that now than it would be later.
24      COMMISSIONER PATON: Yeah.
25      MR. COLLINS: So my suggestion would be to

10:00:45-10:01:58 Page 28

 1  simply add the sentence, if this works for everyone, no
 2  further reimbursements from the Clean Elections Fund
 3  shall be permitted.  And then the next sentence would
 4  be participating candidates may not exceed the general
 5  election.  I don't know if everybody got that or
 6  anybody got that.  Sara got it so that's the most
 7  important thing.
 8      So maybe, Sara, if you could read that back
 9  just real quick for the -- so we have it on the record.
10      MS. LARSEN: Yes.  Chairman, so Rule
11  R2-20-106, Subsection I would state:  If a
12  participating candidate does not account for any
13  outstanding expenditures in the amount of funds
14  returned to the Commission, the participating candidate
15  must reconcile the outstanding expenditures with
16  personal monies.  And then new sentence:  No further
17  reimbursements from the Clean Elections Fund shall be
18  permitted.  Participating candidates may not exceed the
19  primary or general election spending limits.
20      COMMISSIONER MEYER: One thought.  On the
21  sentence you propose, I would maybe suggest saying
22  once -- once funds are returned to the Commission,
23  comma, then what you had added.
24      MR. COLLINS: Okay.
25      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Let's take a look at

10:02:00-10:03:17 Page 29

 1  that.
 2      MS. LARSEN: Okay.
 3      MR. COLLINS: Okay.  So -- so in terms of
 4  making the record clear, I think that what I would
 5  recommend, if everybody is -- and you guys can talk
 6  about this more, obviously, Mr. Chairman, but,
 7  Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, what I would recommend is
 8  that we circulate the amendment -- that we authorize
 9  circulation of the amendments to R2-20-106 and then --
10  and then including the language that Ms. Larsen has
11  drafted.  So I think that the record will be fairly
12  clear at that point.  I mean, we have everything on
13  the -- on the record there.
14      Paula, do you have any further thoughts on
15  that?
16      MS. BICKETT: The only -- Mr. Chair,
17  commission members, the only thing I would say is in
18  your motion, if you could state the language --
19      MR. COLLINS: Okay.
20      MS. BICKETT: That would make it crystal
21  clear, I believe.
22      MR. COLLINS: Okay.
23      MS. BICKETT: And Sara needs to repeat the
24  language.
25      MR. COLLINS: Sure.

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(7) Pages 26 - 29



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

10:03:18-10:04:20 Page 30

 1      MS. BICKETT: Including the beginning
 2  phrase that Commissioner Meyer had recommended.
 3      MR. COLLINS: Okay.  Well, that would be
 4  helpful.
 5      Sara, can you could restate that.  And then
 6  if there was a motion after that, that would be --
 7  sounds like that would complete the record.
 8      MS. LARSEN: Yes.  Chairman, so, again,
 9  Rule R2-20-106, Subsection I would be:  If a
10  participating candidate does account for any
11  outstanding expenditures in the amount of the funds
12  returned to the Commission, the participating candidate
13  must reconcile the outstanding expenditures with
14  personal monies.  Once funds are returned to the
15  Commission, no further reimbursements from the Clean
16  Elections Fund shall be permitted.  Participating
17  candidates may not exceed the -- exceed the primary or
18  general election spending limits.
19      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Mr. Chairman?
20      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Meyer.
21      COMMISSIONER MEYER: I move that we
22  circulate for comment R2-20-106 with the changes to
23  Subsection I just read by Ms. Larsen.
24      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Motion by Commissioner
25  Meyer.

10:04:22-10:05:28 Page 31

 1      Second?
 2      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Second.
 3      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Kimble.
 4      I have a comment, Sara, on discussion.  On
 5  the -- I, again, you know, the last sentence about
 6  participating candidates --
 7      MS. LARSEN: Yes.
 8      CHAIRMAN TITLA: -- may not exceed the
 9  primary or general -- you know, that "may," the word
10  "may" in the Oxford dictionary that I use, I think the
11  word "may" -- and the prior sentence says "must," the
12  participating candidates must reconcile, which is a
13  mandatory which means must, shall, mandatory.  Now, the
14  word participating candidates may, "may" is sort of
15  more, you know, varied there.  It's not a mandatory
16  type of thing.  So I wonder whether it would help if we
17  put down participating candidates must not exceed.
18      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Or shall?
19      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Or shall not exceed,
20  right.
21      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Although we just
22  approved that.
23      MR. COLLINS: Well, I don't think we took a
24  vote.
25      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Oh, okay.  Right.

10:05:29-10:06:23 Page 32

 1      MR. COLLINS: So, Mr. Chairman, at this
 2  point, if Commissioner Kimble will withdraw his
 3  second --
 4      COMMISSIONER MEYER: I withdraw my motion.
 5      MR. COLLINS: And Commissioner Meyer
 6  withdraws his motion, we --
 7      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Okay.  Commissioner
 8  Kimble, is that okay?
 9      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Yes, it is.
10      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Kimble
11  withdraws his a second and Commissioner Meyer --
12  Commissioner -- withdraws his motion for further
13  changes.
14      MR. COLLINS: And then -- and then we would
15  have Sara read it off with the "shall."
16      CHAIRMAN TITLA: A second -- a second item
17  I was looking at --
18      MR. COLLINS: Oh.  We'll get them all.
19      CHAIRMAN TITLA: -- Sara, is J4, the last
20  sentence.  It says, "The Commission is notified of any
21  waiver the return of funds."  So there's a word missing
22  there, I think.  Of?
23      MS. LARSEN: Yes.  Correct, Chairman.  Yes.
24      CHAIRMAN TITLA: If we can add "of" there,
25  then change that word to must, "may" to must or shall.

10:06:28-10:07:45 Page 33

 1  Shall.  Shall not exceed, yeah.  I think that's better.
 2      MS. LARSEN: Correct.  Thank you.
 3      Okay.  So, Chairman, the Rule R2-20-106,
 4  Subsection I would then read:  If a participating
 5  candidate does not account for any outstanding
 6  expenditures in the amount of the funds returned to the
 7  Commission, the participating candidate must reconcile
 8  the outstanding expenditures with personal monies.
 9  Once the funds are returned to the Commission, no
10  further reimbursements from the Clean Elections Fund
11  shall be permitted.  Participating candidates shall not
12  exceed the primary or general election expenditure --
13  primary or general election spending elements.
14      MR. COLLINS: And the change in "I" would
15  be that in -- Commission staff may waive the return of
16  funds if the Commission staff determines the amount
17  returned is de minimus, the cost of recovery exceeds
18  the amount of the return, and the funds to be returned
19  shall not exceed $25, and the Commission is notified of
20  any waiver of the return of funds.
21      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: That would be the
22  change to J, I believe.
23      MR. COLLINS: That's correct.  So with
24  those -- with my comments and Sara's comments which, I
25  think, clears -- makes the record clear, that would be

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(8) Pages 30 - 33



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

10:07:47-10:09:01 Page 34

 1  what you would be approving, along with the other
 2  outlying changes for public comment on Rule R2-20-106.
 3      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Meyer?
 4      COMMISSIONER MEYER: I had one other
 5  question on J.  Sorry, Tom.  On Number 2 where it says
 6  "The cost of recovery exceeds the amount of the
 7  return," how is that determined?  And I wonder if you
 8  might want to have it say the Commission staff
 9  determines the cost of recovery would exceed the amount
10  of the return just to give the staff some discretion
11  there because I don't know how you would actually
12  calculate that cost.
13      MR. COLLINS: Right.  And, Mr. Chairman,
14  Commissioner Meyer, we have done an evaluation and
15  Paula -- Paula Thomas provided some background
16  information on that.  So we do think that that's --
17  that the $25 is really the right threshold.  I
18  certainly don't have any objection to that at this
19  point.  I -- I guess -- I don't want to table these
20  because I'd like -- we have this meeting to get these
21  underway for the 60 days in order to get them in place
22  before 2018.
23      So we're going to need to -- this isn't
24  major surgery, but I think what I -- what I'm going to
25  do now you is read the entire rule that we are amending

10:09:04-10:10:24 Page 35

 1  and have everybody -- see if we caught everything.  And
 2  then if we have -- sorry, Paula.
 3      MS. THOMAS: Can we consider the accounting
 4  cost?  The accounting --
 5      MR. COLLINS: Well, I think the issue is
 6  just does staff -- as staff we can account whatever
 7  however we want to.  So we'd have discretion.
 8      MS. THOMAS: Okay.
 9      MR. COLLINS: So -- so I am going to read
10  the changes out, everything that everybody has
11  discussed, and then that will be on the court
12  reporter's record and we will adopt those changes into
13  the formal document that we provide to the thing.
14      So, Sara, I think I need you to give me the
15  one piece that Damien wrote -- or Commissioner Meyer,
16  rather, wrote out.
17      Okay.  So -- so here we go.  What we are
18  asking you to approve for preliminary comment is under
19  G1, we will be eliminating the Subsection A from
20  pursuant to A.R.S. 16-953.  We will be cleaning up the
21  "all" and eliminating the "of his or her."  We will be
22  underlining as new language all general funds not
23  committed to expenditures, one, during the general
24  election period and, two, for goods and services
25  directed to the general period.

10:10:25-10:11:48 Page 36

 1      On H we will say, All funds returned to the
 2  Commission pursuant to Subsection (G) of this rule,
 3  shall be returned to the Fund by a cashier's check
 4  drawn on the candidate's campaign bank account.  Any
 5  fee associated with the issuance of a cashier's check
 6  shall be deemed a direct campaign expenditure and
 7  reported on the candidate's campaign finance report.
 8      If a participating candidate does not
 9  account for any outstanding expenditure in the amount
10  of funds returned to the Commission, the participating
11  candidate must reconcile the outstanding expenditures
12  with personal monies.  Once funds are returned to the
13  Commission, no further reimbursements from the Clean
14  Elections Fund shall be permitted.  Participating
15  candidates shall not exceed the primary or general
16  election spending limits.
17      Then Subsection J:  The Commission staff
18  may waive the return of funds if:  The Commission staff
19  determines the amount to be returned is de minimus; the
20  Commission -- the cost -- the Commission staff
21  determines the cost of recovery exceeds the amount of
22  the return; the funds to be returned shall not exceed
23  $25, and the Commission is notified of any waiver of
24  the return of funds.
25      So that -- those are the changes that I

10:11:51-10:12:52 Page 37

 1  think this discussion has brought about, and that is
 2  what we would ask you to approve for public comment.
 3      Has our court reporter kept up?  Are we --
 4  are we pretty cool?
 5      Okay.  So unless there's any questions on
 6  that, we would suggest a motion on the language I just
 7  read for public comment.
 8      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioners, any further
 9  changes or any motions to approve?
10      COMMISSIONER MEYER: On J3, just to
11  confirm, I think Tom read -- made one change here.  You
12  want it to stay the way it's written here, right?  "The
13  funds to be returned do not exceed $25."
14      MR. COLLINS: Right.
15      COMMISSIONER MEYER: You put "shall" in
16  there.
17      MR. COLLINS: Mr. Chairman, Commissioner
18  Meyer, I think -- I think Chairman -- Chairman Titla
19  wanted a "shall" there, and so that's why we added a
20  "shall," if I was tracking the discussion correctly.
21      Am I correct, Mr. Chairman?  I think you
22  wanted "shall."
23      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Yeah.  I think mine was in
24  I, but I think that's a good idea to put it in 3 also,
25  shall not --

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(9) Pages 34 - 37



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

10:12:53-10:13:36 Page 38

 1      MR. COLLINS: Okay.  Okay.  So we have two
 2  "shalls."
 3      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Yeah.
 4      MR. COLLINS: Okay.
 5      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Any further comments,
 6  Commissioners?  Motion?
 7      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Mr. Chairman?
 8      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Kimble.
 9      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: I move we publish for
10  public comment the changes to R2-20-106 reflecting the
11  language just read by Mr. Collins.
12      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Motion made by
13  Commissioner Kimble to approve.
14      Second?
15      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Second.
16      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Meyer
17  seconds.
18      All in favor say aye.
19      (Chorus of ayes.)
20      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Opposed?
21      (No response.)
22      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Abstain?
23      (No response.)
24      CHAIRMAN TITLA: The motion is carried
25  unanimously.

10:13:37-10:15:29 Page 39

 1      Okay.  Then we go to V, discussion and
 2  possible action on the following related issues, A,
 3  Citizens Clean Elections Section 16-941, -942, -956,
 4  -957.
 5      Mr. Collins?
 6      MR. COLLINS: Yes.  Commissioner -- I mean,
 7  Chairman Titla, Commissioners, I think -- I think the
 8  most efficient way to work through this is first to --
 9  really A, B, C and D are interrelated, although we've
10  broken them out so people can kind of follow along.  I
11  think that the first question -- and I'm going to look
12  to Mary here.  I think the first question is I think
13  staff is recommending that the Commission, in effect,
14  approve in some way the -- the republication of rules
15  in the Administrative Code.
16      That republication does include the GRRC
17  notice, but it also includes our rules.  So I think
18  that's -- in my view, I think that's about as good as
19  we're going to get under these circumstances.  I think
20  that roughly complies with the -- with the Interagency
21  Service Agreement which we have entered into with
22  the -- with the Commission.  So I think we'd ask you to
23  go ahead and approve those as being consistent with the
24  Interagency Service Agreement, if I'm not mistaken,
25  Mary.

10:15:29-10:16:24 Page 40

 1      Do you think that would be helpful to move
 2  on to the next step after that, or do you think you'd
 3  rather wait and talk about it in mass?
 4      MS. O'GRADY: So this would be approve --
 5  approving -- I'm sorry, Tom.
 6      MR. COLLINS: No, no, no.
 7      MS. O'GRADY: So we're just approving that
 8  we accept the Secretary's actions as being compliant
 9  with the ISA?
10      MR. COLLINS: With respect to the
11  publication.  Correct.
12      MS. O'GRADY: With respect to the
13  publication?  Yeah, they basically did what we asked
14  them to do.
15      MR. COLLINS: Right.  So I don't know if
16  you want a formal vote.  I think it would be helpful
17  to -- because we have a payment coming up and I don't
18  want -- I don't think that either staff or -- anyone on
19  staff wants to make the payment in view of everything
20  without that -- we'd like to have that formally
21  approved and then we'll move on to -- Mr. Archer from
22  the Secretary is here to show you what all the work
23  they have done otherwise, which I think is important.
24      So -- and then we can move onto the legal
25  stuff which is a little bit different.  So if that

10:16:28-10:17:32 Page 41

 1  works for Mary and it works for the Commission --
 2      MS. O'GRADY: That makes --
 3      MR. COLLINS: Yeah.
 4      MS. O'GRADY: Yeah.  Mr. Chairman, Members,
 5  I think -- Commissioners, I think that makes sense.  We
 6  gave them a notice of breach letter.  They responded by
 7  doing what we asked them to do, and so I think it makes
 8  sense to follow Tom's recommendation and take action
 9  that will allow the ISA to move forward.
10      MR. COLLINS: Right.  So -- so the motion
11  we are looking for is that the Commission finds that
12  the -- that the -- that the Secretary's republication
13  of the Commission's rules in the Administrative Code
14  substantially complies with the Interagency Service
15  Agreement.
16      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Comments, Commissioners?
17      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Mr. Chairman,
18  Mr. Collins.
19      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Kimble.
20      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: I'm struggling to
21  find something that was included in our email.  We have
22  here what the Secretary of State's Office -- I believe
23  this is item V.C --
24      MR. COLLINS: Yeah.
25      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: -- 5C now has

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(10) Pages 38 - 41



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

10:17:33-10:18:57 Page 42

 1  published.
 2      MR. COLLINS: Right.
 3      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: But I believe in the
 4  material that you emailed to us, there was also an
 5  index, is that correct, that's not included here?
 6      MR. COLLINS: We sent you the whole
 7  Administrative Code.  We -- for the purposes of this
 8  packet, I limited it to what -- the most relevant
 9  sections.  In the table of contents, if you look to
10  page 1 -- it's not on page 1.  There is a table of
11  contents on page 2 which you don't have because I
12  didn't think it was necessary, and that table of
13  contents outlines first the Commission's rule and then
14  the GRRC revision.  So they're both there, but the most
15  important one, from our perspective, is that the
16  Commission's rule is there.
17      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Well, it was my
18  recollection that when it came to the disputed items,
19  that in the index all it said was "expired."
20      MR. COLLINS: Mr. Chairman, Commissioner
21  Kimble, that was certainly the case with the prior
22  iterations of the publication of the -- of the
23  Administrative Code.  I would have to double-check if
24  that's still the case in the index and, if so, given
25  that -- I would have to -- hang on.  If you bear with

10:19:02-10:20:50 Page 43

 1  me, I will --
 2      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Okay.  I guess what
 3  I'm looking for is you included in here pages 8 --
 4      MR. COLLINS: Right.
 5      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: -- and forward.  What
 6  is page 7?
 7      MR. COLLINS: Page 7 is just Rule 107.
 8      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Okay, or whatever the
 9  index to this section is.
10      MR. COLLINS: Yes.
11      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: My concern with the
12  index was there was no indication in the index, if you
13  never went beyond that, that there was any concern.
14      MR. COLLINS: I follow -- I follow your
15  question.  I am trying to call up the full -- the full.
16      COMMISSIONER CHAN: I can't find it either.
17      MR. COLLINS: I'm trying to call -- if
18  you'll bear with me.  I am searching for the -- okay.
19  So the original document that was emailed to you was 29
20  pages, and it did not include the index to the
21  Administrative Code.  It included a table of contents
22  that on page -- page 1 of the table of contents under
23  "General Provisions," it said -- under the heading
24  "Disputed Section R2-20-109," it said "independent
25  expenditure reportings," and then it said "expired."

10:20:53-10:22:31 Page 44

 1  And then it said -- under Disputed Section R2-20-111,
 2  it said "nonparticipating reporting requirements and
 3  contribution limits," and then it said "expired."
 4      So that's the table of contents that's on
 5  page -- that's on page 1 which you didn't receive in
 6  the limited packet, but you did receive in the email.
 7  What I would say about that is, yes, that, in fact, the
 8  expiration -- and you can look at this, what I'm
 9  looking at right here.  While you are looking at that,
10  I would simply say that the expiration is still noted
11  in the -- in the Administrative Code, but our major
12  purpose has been to ensure that our language of the
13  rule was there too.
14      So if you recall last month, the expiration
15  was there without our rule.  Now the Secretary of State
16  acting, I think, more consistently with what it has
17  said its role is as a publisher, has essentially
18  published both the expiration and the rule.  And from
19  our perspective, the most -- or at least from staff's
20  perspective, I should say, the most important thing in
21  this particular context was to ensure that the rule
22  that we have promulgated is there.
23      And then we have some other discussion to
24  have post this about that and it may be better, then,
25  to move that into that -- into that broader discussion

10:22:34-10:23:45 Page 45

 1  and hold on approval so you can get that information in
 2  the context of the legal advice.  That might be better.
 3      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Okay.  Mr. Chair,
 4  Mr. Collins, in this statement we were just handed
 5  which is what we were emailed --
 6      MR. COLLINS: Yes.
 7      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: -- reflects my
 8  concern that if I am a candidate and I'm looking
 9  through the index here, general provisions, and I come
10  down to disputed Section R2-20-109, it says "expired."
11  So with no --
12      MR. COLLINS: Correct.
13      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: -- with no further
14  explanation other than it says disputed, but are you
15  comfortable with that in the index being an accurate
16  reflection of what's in the actual document?
17      MR. COLLINS: Well, let me -- let me say
18  this about that.  And, again, I would -- I would
19  suggest that there's -- there are some broader legal
20  issues that we might want to discuss in executive
21  session, but for purposes of your question,
22  Mr. Chairman, Commissioner Kimble, I believe this is as
23  good as it's going to get right now and that the most
24  important thing is that candidates have notice that
25  there is, in fact, a rule that applies to the

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(11) Pages 42 - 45



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

10:23:48-10:24:56 Page 46

 1  traditional candidates and, likewise, the independent
 2  spenders know that there's a rule that's applied to
 3  them.
 4      The fact that there's a dispute over that
 5  rule is a publicly known fact.  So it's not -- it's
 6  like -- it's not like they're publishing anything that
 7  people don't already know, but you know, again, I think
 8  the question is if we want to defer action on approving
 9  that particular aspect, it would be better to have that
10  in the context of how this fits into our broader legal
11  discussion which Mary can do if you want to move into
12  executive session, and then the only question becomes
13  do you want to look at the progress that the See the
14  Money program itself has made which Mr. Archer is here
15  to present before or after that executive session.
16      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Well, Mr. Chairman, I
17  would be happy to see the progress on the See the
18  Money.
19      MR. COLLINS: Okay.  So --
20      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Before so we don't
21  inconvenience Mr. Archer.
22      MR. COLLINS: Okay.  So, Mr. Chairman, if
23  that -- if that meets your fancy, I would -- I would
24  recommend that we let Mr. -- Mr. Archer provided a memo
25  that, putting aside the publication issue, outlines the

10:24:59-10:26:19 Page 47

 1  progress that they have made.  I can say without
 2  hesitation that Sara and I have been at every meeting
 3  regarding the development of this program and process.
 4  We've been updated on it.
 5      We have seen it develop, and we are putting
 6  all the -- putting everything else -- you know, this
 7  rule issue is important because the rule relates to the
 8  reports and the reports relate to authority and then
 9  all of it fits together in the ISA; however, while this
10  issue has been discussed, Sara and I have continued to
11  attend meetings and the Secretary's office and the IT
12  staff, including Mr. Archer and others, have been there
13  and listening to us and engaging -- we've been engaging
14  with them.
15      And so it's been a very positive working
16  relationship, and I think some positive things have
17  come from it.  And Mr. Archer is able to -- I think, if
18  we have the computer system set up, to show you some of
19  the -- some of the pieces of this on a preliminary
20  basis, granted the data here has not been cleaned.
21  This is sort of a mockup, but it shows the
22  functionality.
23      And I guess I'd turn it to over to him, but
24  with the idea that putting all of the legal issues
25  aside, the work product Sara and I have been involved

10:26:23-10:27:30 Page 48

 1  in, we're satisfied with, and we think we have
 2  developed -- we have a good working relation with the
 3  Secretary's office, Mr. Archer and the rest of the
 4  folks there.  So I think if Mr. Archer can step to the
 5  podium and make it all -- do his magic, that would be
 6  great.
 7      MR. ARCHER: Thank you, Tom.
 8      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Mr. Archer.
 9      MR. ARCHER: Thank you, Chairman,
10  Commissioners, my name is Garrett Archer.  I am the IT
11  project manager specifically for See the Money, and I'm
12  very excited to be here today to show you the progress
13  that we've made on the application.
14      As Tom noted, it is an internal beta
15  release right now.  We are going -- undergoing
16  extensive quality assurance testing.  The data is --
17  it's using real data, but every once in a while,
18  there's still some things that we have to look at and
19  say, okay, we need to reframe this data set a certain
20  way to make sure that it accurately reflects how the
21  data is actually reported, but other than that, we're
22  very excited how the data is being presented.  And we
23  are confident that we're going to make our October 31st
24  public beta release.
25      And at that point, we're going to basically

10:27:33-10:29:05 Page 49

 1  engage the community for their feedback, their input in
 2  anticipation of our January general availability
 3  release which will begin the process of the onboarding
 4  of -- of other jurisdictions which fits into our full
 5  goal of providing a campaign finance reporting tool
 6  that doesn't just include state data but also data from
 7  other jurisdictions.
 8      So I was told to do this just to make sure
 9  it works.  There we go.  Okay.  So this is the landing
10  page as it stands right now.  The logo will change.  We
11  have not branded this site yet so there are no -- there
12  are no disclosure statements.  The logo is not up yet,
13  but this is the -- the landing page as it will be
14  presented on the public beta with the disclosures and
15  the branding.
16      I'm going to start with the elections
17  overview.  This is where I cross my fingers.  Okay.
18  And this said, the data is not fully optimized quite
19  yet.  So --
20      MR. COLLINS: And our system may be slow.
21  I don't know.
22      MR. ARCHER: Yeah, but it did work when I
23  tested it here.  So I'm going to try one more time.
24  Here we go.
25      Okay.  So as you can see, this is the

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(12) Pages 46 - 49



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

10:29:08-10:30:10 Page 50

 1  elections overview page.  This is where an enduser
 2  would go to see, you know, a broad overview of -- did
 3  you have a question?
 4      MR. COLLINS: Now, I was just -- you know,
 5  for people who can't see this screen, there's a set of
 6  screens in the back.
 7      MR. ARCHER: Oh, okay.
 8      MR. COLLINS: If you want to look.
 9      MR. ARCHER: So this is a broad overview of
10  the money that's been spent in 2016.  The -- everything
11  is color coordinated based on these entity types right
12  here.  So as you can see, SolarCity, for example, you
13  hover over them, they've spent the most for 2016, and
14  it goes down from there.  There's -- there's you.  And
15  then we have -- orange is individuals and vice versa.
16  This is a pie chart that basically shows just an
17  overall amount that's been spent based on the
18  percentages.  So this is -- and then we -- yes.
19      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Mr. Taylor,
20  Mr. Chairman, this is -- this is already fascinating to
21  me.  This is over every committee, what was given over
22  the whole election cycle last time?
23      MR. ARCHER: Mr. Chairman, Commissioner
24  Chan, that is correct.  Yeah.
25      COMMISSIONER CHAN: That's really

10:30:11-10:31:19 Page 51

 1  fascinating.
 2      COMMISSIONER MEYER: This is real info.
 3  This not --
 4      MR. ARCHER: This is -- yeah.  This is real
 5  info.  As I said, the data might not be either
 6  optimized or sometimes it's not categorized correctly,
 7  and you have to work with the development team to make
 8  sure that when they do their schematic changes, that it
 9  is -- they're not, you know, putting a condition
10  someplace where it shouldn't be and then, you know,
11  something happens.  But this is as -- you know, I'm
12  doing some extensive auditing of this information, and
13  this is -- accurately reflects 2016 right now.  Yes.
14      So -- and we can click on these people.  So
15  you can click on an entity and it will bring up a data
16  view of their income and expenses.  You can see -- you
17  can also download this information, and it will
18  download everything across the filters that you have
19  applied up here.  And here's the -- for example, here's
20  some of these committees.  I don't -- I'm not sure
21  these links work yet so I'm not going to click on them
22  right now, but it will show the committee name, the
23  name of the -- that group right there that received it.
24      We can go through these.  There's
25  consistency across all of these tabs.  So, you know --

10:31:22-10:32:33 Page 52

 1  and then when an enduser is going through this
 2  information, they will -- they'll be able to say, well,
 3  green will mean PACs, parties and whatnot.  So it's
 4  always going to be consistent across the board.
 5      One of the things that we're very excited
 6  about right now is in the organizations tab, these are
 7  the -- you know, a lot of these are made up of
 8  501(c)(4)s.  If you click on these people -- on this
 9  organization, you get their expenses; however, when you
10  go into the info view which is kind of the vitals page
11  for everything, it gives the vitals that are reported
12  to us.  This is their -- the reports that they file.
13      And then we've tapped into ProPublica to
14  actually pick up their 990 information.  So all of
15  the -- any organization 501(c)(4) that files with the
16  IRS -- obviously, they all do -- we will have whatever
17  their most recent filing on their info page.
18      MR. COLLINS: Right.  And, if I may,
19  Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, I mean, the 990 thing, I
20  think, is very helpful.  It's -- it is an interesting
21  dynamic because the 990 comes a year after the
22  election, basically.  So --
23      MR. ARCHER: Yeah.
24      MR. COLLINS: So -- well, whereas the
25  campaign finance reports and our -- our reports, the

10:32:36-10:33:47 Page 53

 1  16-941(d) reports that I mentioned in Garrett's memos
 2  are time sensitive, the 990 reports are sort of going
 3  to be things that you are going to be looking at in
 4  retrospect.
 5      MR. ARCHER: Yeah.  Well, we're kind of at
 6  the mercy --
 7      MR. COLLINS: Yeah.
 8      MR. ARCHER: -- of the IRS.
 9      MR. COLLINS: Yeah.
10      MR. ARCHER: And if you click on these
11  PDFs, it will take you to the link of the actual 990.
12      So we also have a very powerful search
13  function here.  We use some of the same techniques that
14  Google and other search languages do -- or search
15  engines do where you can type in any part of a record
16  and you'll get -- and, of course, now that I'm showing
17  you this, as you can see, there's a lot of -- just to
18  address this, one of the things that we are working on
19  for our January release is a name normalization.
20      It's an extremely extensive process, but
21  one of our big goals is to make sure that when I type
22  in "Michelle Reagan" as a user or whoever, it will show
23  one entity rather than, you know, multiple -- multiple.
24  So -- but, you know, it's not just that.  I can also --
25  come on.  Okay.  I can also say -- I live on Olive

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(13) Pages 50 - 53



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

10:33:51-10:35:03 Page 54

 1  Avenue so I can also type in my street name and see who
 2  in my area or on Olive Avenue has donated as well and
 3  is in the campaign finance system.  So -- and this
 4  works across cities.  You know, anything that's in the
 5  record, essentially, we can basically tie into that
 6  search function.
 7      Let's see.  Here are the filters.  This is
 8  where you would go to make alterations to your query.
 9  Sorry.  I think the mouse is losing functionality here.
10  I'm sorry.
11      MR. COLLINS: The mouse is very far away
12  from its home.
13      MR. ARCHER: Yeah.  So -- and this is -- as
14  you see, this is -- this is all the office -- this is
15  all the filters that you can use.  I anticipate -- when
16  I was sitting here I -- I'm going to anticipate putting
17  a filter on here to actually also filter out Clean
18  Elections candidates as well.  So you can just click on
19  the filter and when you go into candidate page, it will
20  only reflect Clean Elections participants, but -- and
21  this, you know, I can -- I can change this.
22      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Excuse me.  Could I
23  ask you one question?  Do you have historical data in
24  here, too, going back -- I saw quite a few years here.
25  Do you have historical data entered from --

10:35:08-10:36:32 Page 55

 1      MR. ARCHER: Mr. Chairman, Commissioner
 2  Kimble, we have data going back all the way from when
 3  we began doing computerized campaign finance systems.
 4  So it goes all the way back into the --
 5      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: And it's searchable
 6  through See the Money?
 7      MR. ARCHER: Yes.  That is correct.  It
 8  is -- it is searchable all the way back to where we
 9  have records in our campaign finance database.
10      So if I set this filter -- I'm going to go
11  to something that's a little -- a little more exciting
12  when I filter out.  So this is the 2014 -- money spent
13  in 2014.  If I wanted to filter it some more, I could
14  filter it by legislative -- there's a good one.  So it
15  will show -- there's how it's filtered now on those
16  candidates.  So -- and then -- sorry.  The mouse is --
17  and then here, down here is a timeline.  It will show
18  their expenses, their income, as well as their burn
19  rate ratio over time.  So these are the -- excuse me --
20  the three graphs that power the system.
21      All of this data, like I said, if you go
22  into the data view, it can be downloaded by anybody
23  with no problem.  I can download all of this
24  information right here.  I can go to this info view
25  page for the candidate and it will show all their

10:36:35-10:37:27 Page 56

 1  vitals as well as the file reports, the PDF reports.
 2      COMMISSIONER CHAN: May I ask,
 3  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Taylor [sic], what is the burn rate
 4  for a candidate?
 5      MR. ARCHER: Mr. Chairman, Commissioner
 6  Chan, the burn rate is simply a ratio of their expenses
 7  and their income for that quarter.
 8      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Oh, okay.  How fast
 9  they spent the money they got?
10      MR. ARCHER: Yeah.  And if they had a
11  certain cash on hand number, and then, you know, they
12  spent 80 percent of it.
13      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Okay.
14      MR. ARCHER: For example.
15      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Okay.
16      MR. ARCHER: So that is pretty much the
17  meat and potatoes right now.  Everything -- as you can
18  see, it's very consistent across the board.
19      One other thing I guess I should point out
20  as well is all of these graphs can be printed,
21  downloaded, these images, and they can also be embedded
22  into other websites.  So you can get an embed code
23  which you can then -- you know, if you are -- if you
24  are a citizen, a concerned citizen that likes to blog
25  about elections, you can pick one of these graphs.  You

10:37:30-10:38:40 Page 57

 1  can pick up the embed code and then that graph will
 2  remain on your site.  And then if the data --
 3  underlying data changes at any time, the graph will
 4  also change to reflect -- on your site it will reflect
 5  the changes.  So it's not a static graph.  It doesn't
 6  just pick up this data and move on.  It actually picks
 7  up whatever is the newest information.
 8      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Mr. Chairman?
 9      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Meyer.
10      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Thank you for showing
11  this.  This is really amazing.  So the chart on the
12  left, I'm assuming that's to scale where you're
13  hovering now?
14      MR. ARCHER: Mr. Chairman, Commissioner
15  Meyer, when you say "to scale," you mean this is a,
16  say, 60-plus association?  This -- so this -- yeah.
17  The tree chart -- the tree chart is to reflect -- we
18  chose it because we can display an enormous amount of
19  data, but also, you know, we kind of intuitively know
20  that most people who look at campaign finance data are
21  kind of looking for who the big influencers are.  So we
22  chose this chart because it really does show the impact
23  of the larger influencers and it kind of shows it
24  across the board, you know.
25      COMMISSIONER MEYER: So it is to scale?

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(14) Pages 54 - 57



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

10:38:43-10:39:41 Page 58

 1      MR. ARCHER: It is to scale.  Yes, sir.
 2      COMMISSIONER MEYER: So then the chart on
 3  the right, the pie chart or circle chart --
 4      MR. ARCHER: Uh-huh.
 5      COMMISSIONER MEYER: -- is that the same
 6  information as what's on the left, just in a different
 7  format?
 8      MR. ARCHER: Yes.  That is an aggregated
 9  version of the chart on the left.  So this one is
10  showing the entities and how they spent it.  That one
11  is just showing everything within the IE.  So that's
12  PACs, 14 million.  And then organizations gave 10
13  million.
14      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Okay.
15      MR. ARCHER: And then one thing has to be
16  clarified at some point, but it's somewhat obvious, but
17  green means it was in support.  Red means that it was
18  against.
19      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Got you.
20      MR. ARCHER: It was money spent in
21  opposition.
22      And, then, I guess I'll just do one more
23  here.  This is the individuals.  Let me go back to '16.
24  I'm not going to do '17 because there's obviously no
25  reports filed so there's no data.  So this is money

10:39:45-10:41:07 Page 59

 1  that was spent in '16 by individuals only.  So, you
 2  know, you can see, for example, Mr. Hail over here, he
 3  gave a pretty sizable donation.  So if I was a -- I
 4  could say, oh, what did Mr. Hail give to?  And you can
 5  see that he gave to Prop 123.
 6      So that is what I have right now.  As I
 7  said, we anticipate -- we are completely on schedule
 8  for an October 30th -- 31st release.  In fact, we've
 9  put our money where our mouth is, as we've put on our
10  site -- we've actually put an -- on the actual See the
11  Money site, we now have a countdown because we are
12  going to make that beta release.
13      So -- and that is -- if you have any other
14  questions, certainly I can do my best to answer them.
15      COMMISSIONER MEYER: A budget for the
16  trademark defense?
17      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Any further comments?
18      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Well, Mr. Chairman,
19  so will -- I see it's seethemoney.com.
20      Will there be a place on your page -- on
21  the Secretary of State's page that directs people to
22  it?
23      MR. ARCHER: Mr. Chairman, Commissioner
24  Kimble, yes.  On our -- once the beta is -- we will
25  make adjustments to the sos.gov site.  You know, in the

10:41:13-10:42:35 Page 60

 1  form of a graphic while it's in beta release --
 2  obviously, once in beta release, we are going to
 3  maintain the link to the current reporting site and
 4  then that link will bring you to this site which we
 5  will then have the appropriate disclosures on, you
 6  know, everything that was in the ISA that reflects that
 7  this is a government site.
 8      And then at that point, after the -- after
 9  the release in January, that's when we would flip it
10  over and actually have -- what we currently have is --
11  you know, for the search, the finance database site or
12  link in our site, it will then link to this.
13      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: And one other
14  question -- and I apologize if this sounds petty, but
15  what did we agree to, Mr. Collins, on the banner of it
16  to show Secretary of State's Office, Clean Elections,
17  or what did we agree on?
18      MR. COLLINS: Well, as I think --
19  Mr. Chairman, Commissioner Kimble, as Mr. Archer has
20  alluded to, we have the provision of the ISA that
21  explicitly says that -- basically, three things.
22  There's a -- that both logos will be displayed on the
23  site, and we've expressed -- and I think -- I think
24  we're in general agreement that that's an appropriate
25  thing to do because seethemoney.com is not on its own

10:42:39-10:43:49 Page 61

 1  going to tell anybody what this means.  In other words,
 2  we know qualitatively and quantitatively that voters
 3  don't really trust information.
 4      So we want to have something on there that
 5  says this is government-verified information.  And
 6  that's what that's there for, and then there's a paid
 7  for with Clean Elections money -- or clean -- money
 8  from the Clean Elections Fund.  I don't have the exact
 9  phraseology that goes on the -- on the footer of the --
10  of the website.
11      So those will both be there.  They
12  haven't -- as Mr. Archer alluded to, they haven't been
13  added to the landing page yet, but as far as I know,
14  they'll be there.  And that's -- that's the main point.
15      We also, as part of the ISA -- and this is
16  a major benefit to the Commission, you know, we have
17  access to the information we need to do our job.  And
18  so I think that this will continue to be -- although
19  housed in the Secretary's office and the Secretary's
20  office has the administrative responsibility for this,
21  I think this is something that we will want to join
22  with them in promoting the amount of information and
23  the way the information can be utilized, but we will --
24  I anticipate, unless something changes, that Clean
25  Elections and the Secretary's office will be

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(15) Pages 58 - 61



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

10:43:51-10:44:42 Page 62

 1  represented on the -- on the landing page.
 2      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Okay.  And,
 3  Mr. Archer, I just want to say as someone who has been
 4  very skeptical of this because of past incidents which
 5  we probably don't need to go into now, this is very
 6  impressive.  I am -- I am very impressed by this.  I
 7  think it's intuitive.  It's attractive.  It's -- the
 8  search functions are far in excess of what I expected,
 9  and I like it a lot.
10      MR. ARCHER: Thank you very much.
11      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Any more comments,
12  Commissioners?  Commissioner Chan?
13      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Mr. Chair, I just
14  wanted the opportunity to thank Mr. Archer.  I mean,
15  this is -- Garrett Taylor or Archer?  I'm sorry.
16      MR. ARCHER: No.
17      COMMISSIONER CHAN: What is your last name?
18      MR. ARCHER: Garrett Archer.
19      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Archer.  I'm so sorry.
20      MR. COLLINS: Garrett Taylor is this -- is
21  the chamber's lobbyist and he's less friendly.
22      MR. ARCHER: Yeah, Gary.
23      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Well, thank you --
24  thank you, Mr. Archer, for coming and showing us this
25  because, you know, seeing your memo versus seeing

10:44:45-10:45:50 Page 63

 1  this -- and I know I was excited about the project, but
 2  seeing it like this is -- I just would echo what
 3  Commissioner Kimble said.  It's really incredible, and
 4  I just can't wait to get my hands on it and play with
 5  it a little bit when it launches.  So thank you.
 6      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Any further comments
 7  Commissioners?
 8      (No response.)
 9      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Do we take action on this
10  item?
11      MR. COLLINS: Well, what I would recommend,
12  Mr. Chairman, is that, you know, this -- what we'll
13  probably want to do -- I mean, I don't think that
14  Mr. Archer needs to actually hang around for this, but
15  we'll want to have the legal conversation around the
16  issues that Mr. Kimble -- that Commissioner Kimble has
17  raised and the broader -- we've got a bunch of other
18  items related to legal stuff.
19      And we want to get that resolved and
20  then -- and then we'll have action after that, I think.
21  You know, because the main action we want to make sure
22  is that the Commission is comfortable and comfortable
23  with the staff recommendation that we go ahead and make
24  the progress payment on October 2nd that we would make.
25      So -- so I think that the best order of

10:45:53-10:46:39 Page 64

 1  operations would be to go -- talk to Mary.  That may be
 2  in executive session, come out of the executive
 3  session, any other discussion that needs to occur, and
 4  then -- and then, provided you agree with the staff
 5  recommendation, move forward with the, you know,
 6  approval of the October 2nd transfer.  So that's how I
 7  would handle it if that works for you, Mr. Chairman.
 8      CHAIRMAN TITLA: So we need to go into
 9  executive session now?
10      MR. COLLINS: I guess it's up to Mary, how
11  much Mary wants to talk in open session versus how much
12  she wants to talk in executive session.
13      MS. O'GRADY: Let's go into executive
14  session.
15      MR. COLLINS: I think we probably might
16  want to go into executive session for a bit and kind of
17  hash out the questions we have legally.
18      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Mr. Chairman --
19      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Thank you, Mr. Archer, for
20  your work.
21      MR. ARCHER: Commissioners, thank you.
22      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Meyer?
23      COMMISSIONER MEYER: I move we move to
24  executive session.
25      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Motion by Commissioner

10:46:39-11:38:52 Page 65

 1  Meyer to go into executive session.
 2      Second?
 3      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Second.
 4      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Chan seconds.
 5      All in favor say aye.
 6      (Chorus of ayes.)
 7      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Opposed?
 8      (No response.)
 9      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Abstain?
10      (No response.)
11      CHAIRMAN TITLA: We are in executive
12  session at 10:45 a.m.
13      (The following section of the meeting is in
14  executive session and bound under separate cover.)
15      * * * * *
16      (End of executive session.  Public meeting
17  resumes at 11:38 a.m.)
18      CHAIRMAN TITLA: We're back in regular
19  session on Item V:  Discussion and possible action in
20  the following related issues.
21      Mr. Director, are we -- what's your
22  recommendation?
23      MR. COLLINS: Oh, yes.  Commissioners, just
24  to recap, you've seen the ISA -- or the demonstration,
25  rather, on the See the Money program as it stands.

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(16) Pages 62 - 65



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

11:38:55-11:40:21 Page 66

 1  You've reviewed Garrett Archer's memo and had an
 2  opportunity to see Mr. Archer's work along with the
 3  team there at the -- at the Secretary of State's.  And
 4  we think that's good progress and we're positive -- we
 5  feel positively about that.
 6      In addition, pursuant to the -- to Mary's
 7  negotiations with the Secretary's office, we think that
 8  we have a resolution that's about as good as it's going
 9  to get for now in terms of the publication of our rules
10  in the Administrative Code.  Although that comes along
11  with the publication of GRRC's objections, they're both
12  there, but at least the public will be on notice that
13  we believe our rules are our rules and that is also the
14  law.
15      So unless you have further questions, I
16  have a couple of recommendations.  My first
17  recommendation would be that we approve the payment of
18  the $150,000 under the terms of the ISA on October 2nd
19  subject to the reservation of any rights we have under
20  the Interagency Service Agreement entered into with the
21  Secretary of State's Office.
22      So a motion along those lines would be, I
23  think, our recommendation.  So a motion to approve
24  payment of 150 -- actually, really a transfer of
25  $150,000 on October 2nd to the Secretary of State's

11:40:26-11:41:20 Page 67

 1  Office subject to the reservation of any rights under
 2  the Interagency Service Agreement that this is all
 3  subject to.
 4      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Mr. Chairman?
 5      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Chan.
 6      COMMISSIONER CHAN: I would so move.
 7      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Motion made by
 8  Commissioner Chan.
 9      Second?
10      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Second.
11      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Kimble
12  seconds the motion.
13      All in favor say aye.
14      (Chorus of ayes.)
15      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Opposed?
16      (No response.)
17      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Abstain?
18      (No response.)
19      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Motion is carried
20  unanimously.
21      MR. COLLINS: Mr. Chairman, before we move
22  on, as the agenda indicates, there's a discussion and
23  possible action on Rules R2-20-109 and R2-20-111.  Just
24  to recap, R2-20-109 are rules that detail the
25  Commission's policies with respect to enforcement of

11:41:24-11:43:02 Page 68

 1  16-941, 16-958 and 16-942(B) with respect to
 2  independent expenditures.  We think that those rules
 3  provide guidance to the public and that's part of the
 4  reason we wanted them in the Administrative Code.
 5      However, in order to ensure that the
 6  Administrative Code is as clean as possible, we would
 7  recommend that you vote to circulate R2-20-109 for 60
 8  days public comment, and we will publish the notice
 9  that is in your materials with the Secretary of State's
10  Office as soon as possible.
11      Relatedly, we would recommend the same with
12  respect to R2-20-111.  R2-20-111 does a couple of
13  different things.  The first is it reiterates the
14  statute, the Clean Elections Act says what it says and
15  what the courts have said it said both in the Supreme
16  Court and the Superior Court in 2014 in the Horne
17  versus Clean Elections Commission case; that the --
18  that the Commission does have authority to enforce
19  16-941(B) and 16-942(B) against the so-called
20  traditional candidates.
21      It also makes clear that the -- under the
22  Supreme Court's ruling in Clean Elections Commission v.
23  Brain, that the 20 percent reduction comes off of the
24  adjusted campaign finance limits, and it makes a
25  similar technical -- technical adoption.  Those two

11:43:06-11:44:39 Page 69

 1  changes are designed to avoid a Voter Protection Act
 2  issue because the legislation tweaked the formula away
 3  from inflation and in favor of a flat $100 increase.
 4      So we adopted that rule, as the explanation
 5  provides, in order to avoid conflict, and we -- again,
 6  we believe that this will help clarify -- that
 7  recirculating and republishing will help clarify things
 8  for the public and address these -- the conflict issue
 9  in the -- in the -- in the published Administrative
10  Code.
11      So there's some tweaks to 111 to make the
12  language a little more efficient and clearer which are
13  acknowledged in there.  There's some superfluous
14  language that we've lined out.  You'll note that all
15  the language in there is submitted as, quote/unquote,
16  new language, although it's not new language, and
17  that's in part because we don't really know any other
18  way to properly notice the fact that these rules are
19  being, you know, essentially reenacting existing rules,
20  but that's what we're doing.
21      If the Secretary's office asks us to change
22  those, we'll -- we'll work on that, but the bottom line
23  is we'd ask you to approve both of those rules for
24  public comment.  And we will forthwith publish them
25  with the Secretary and publish them on our website.  So

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(17) Pages 66 - 69



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

11:44:42-11:45:25 Page 70

 1  that's what I'm hoping and recommending a motion.  I
 2  would do separate motions on Rule 109 and 111 for
 3  public comment.
 4      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Any motion or comment by
 5  the commissioners based upon the director's
 6  recommendation?
 7      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Mr. Chairman?
 8      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Kimble.
 9      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: I move that we
10  publish R2-20-109 for 60 days for public comment.
11      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Motion made by
12  Commissioner Kimble as stated.
13      Second?
14      COMMISSIONER CHAN: Second.
15      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Second by Commissioner
16  Chan.
17      All in favor say aye.
18      (Chorus of ayes.)
19      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Opposed?
20      (No response.)
21      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Abstain?
22      (No response.)
23      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Motion is carried
24  unanimously.
25      Any other comments or motions?

11:45:28-11:46:13 Page 71

 1      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Mr. Chairman?
 2      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Meyer.
 3      COMMISSIONER MEYER: I'll make that same
 4  motion that we put out for public comment for 60 days
 5  proposed Rule R2-20-111.
 6      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Motion made by
 7  Commissioner Meyer to publish for 60 days for public
 8  comment R2-20-111.
 9      Is there a second?
10      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Second.
11      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Second, Commissioner
12  Kimble.
13      All in favor say aye.
14      (Chorus of ayes.)
15      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Opposed?
16      (No answer.)
17      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Abstain?
18      (No response.)
19      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Motion is carried
20  unanimously.
21      Is there anything else, Director?
22      MR. COLLINS: Mr. Chairman, we just have
23  public comment, if any.  If not, a motion to adjourn
24  is -- I think we're at a motion to adjourn.
25      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Is there any public

11:46:14-11:47:01 Page 72

 1  comment?
 2      (No response.)
 3      CHAIRMAN TITLA: I just want to note that
 4  our esteemed counsel, Mary O'Grady -- I'd like to
 5  commend and congratulate her for an award she received
 6  in the attorney magazine that we get each month.  It's
 7  a very prestigious award that she got being recognized
 8  as an attorney -- I can't remember the word
 9  specifically, but congratulations, Mary.
10      MS. O'GRADY: Thank you.
11      CHAIRMAN TITLA: As attorneys we get a
12  monthly magazine called attorney magazine, and
13  attorneys that have received awards get recognized
14  there.  So congratulations.
15      MS. O'GRADY: Thank you very much.
16      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Motion to adjourn?
17      COMMISSIONER KIMBLE: Mr. Chairman, I move
18  we adjourn.
19      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Kimble.
20      Second?
21      COMMISSIONER MEYER: Second.
22      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Commissioner Meyer
23  seconds.
24      All in favor say aye.
25      (Chorus of ayes.)

11:47:02-11:47:07 Page 73

 1      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Opposed?
 2      (No response.)
 3      CHAIRMAN TITLA: Abstain?
 4      (No response.)
 5      CHAIRMAN TITLA: We are adjourned at 11:46
 6  a.m.  Thank you, everyone.
 7      (Whereupon, the proceedings concluded at
 8      11:47 a.m.)
 9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(18) Pages 70 - 73



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

Page 74

 1  STATE OF ARIZONA     )
   
 2  COUNTY OF MARICOPA   )
   
 3              BE IT KNOWN the foregoing proceedings were
   
 4  taken by me; that I was then and there a Certified
   
 5  Reporter of the State of Arizona, and by virtue thereof
   
 6  authorized to administer an oath; that the proceedings
   
 7  were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter
   
 8  transcribed into typewriting under my direction; that
   
 9  the foregoing pages are a full, true, and accurate
   
10  transcript of all proceedings and testimony had and
   
11  adduced upon the taking of said proceedings, all done to
   
12  the best of my skill and ability.
   
13              I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am in no way
   
14  related to nor employed by any of the parties thereto
   
15  nor am I in any way interested in the outcome hereof.
   
16              DATED at Phoenix, Arizona, this 29th day of
   
17  September, 2017.
   
18 
   
19                       ______________________________
                         LILIA MONARREZ, RPR, CR #50699
20 
   
21 
   
22 
   
23 
   
24 
   
25 

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(19) Page 74



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

$

$100 (1) 69:3
$150,000 (2) 66:18,25
$25 (6) 23:2,4;33:19;
    34:17;36:23;37:13

[

[sic] (1) 56:3

A

a- (1) 15:17
able (2) 47:17;52:2
Above (1) 8:3
Abstain (8) 3:25;17:21;
    38:22;65:9;67:17;
    70:21;71:17;73:3
accept (1) 40:8
access (1) 61:17
account (9) 19:2,20;
    27:12;28:12;30:10;
    33:5;35:6;36:4,9
accounted (3) 21:4;
    25:13,19
accounting (4) 26:9,19;
    35:3,4
accounts (2) 19:15,16
accurate (2) 25:21;
    45:15
accurately (2) 48:20;
    51:13
acknowledged (1)
    69:13
across (7) 18:22;51:18,
    25;52:4;54:4;56:18;
    57:24
act (3) 12:13;68:14;
    69:1
acting (1) 44:16
action (13) 3:7;4:4;
    5:12;10:19;14:12;39:2;
    41:8;46:8;63:9,20,21;
    65:19;67:23
actions (3) 5:25;11:2;
    40:8
active (1) 9:3
activity (1) 26:10
actual (5) 7:15;15:11;
    45:16;53:11;59:10
actually (15) 7:7;8:16;
    9:2,8;12:25;21:9;
    34:11;48:21;52:14;
    54:17;57:6;59:10;
    60:10;63:14;66:24
add (6) 6:15;27:10,13,
    23;28:1;32:24
added (3) 28:23;37:19;
    61:13
adding (1) 18:9
addition (1) 66:6

additional (1) 12:17
address (4) 6:9;8:8;
    53:18;69:8
addressed (1) 16:11
adjourn (4) 71:23,24;
    72:16,18
adjourned (1) 73:5
adjusted (1) 68:24
adjustments (1) 59:25
administrative (15)
    5:25;14:20,25;19:7;
    39:15;41:13;42:7,23;
    43:21;44:11;61:20;
    66:10;68:4,6;69:9
administratively (1)
    19:9
adopt (5) 16:7,21,23;
    17:8;35:12
adopted (1) 69:4
adoption (3) 13:3,19;
    68:25
advice (1) 45:2
again (9) 16:25;18:13,
    18;22:4;30:8;31:5;
    45:18;46:7;69:5
against (2) 58:18;68:19
agenda (1) 67:22
aggregated (1) 58:8
ago (1) 20:13
agree (4) 26:24;60:15,
    17;64:4
agreed (1) 20:11
agreed-upon (1) 14:23
agreement (7) 24:22;
    39:21,24;41:15;60:24;
    66:20;67:2
ahead (3) 10:6;39:23;
    63:23
allow (1) 41:9
allowed (1) 24:25
allows (1) 26:12
alluded (2) 60:20;61:12
along (8) 6:12;7:6;
    16:21;34:1;39:10;66:2,
    10,22
alterations (1) 54:8
Although (5) 31:21;
    39:9;61:18;66:10;
    69:16
always (1) 52:4
amazing (1) 57:11
amended (1) 26:6
amending (1) 34:25
amendment (2) 10:20;
    29:8
amendments (2) 22:10;
    29:9
amount (22) 19:20;
    21:10;22:25;23:2;25:2,
    10,21;26:13,15;28:13;
    30:11;33:6,16,18;34:6,
    9;36:9,19,21;50:17;
    57:18;61:22

and/or (1) 24:24
anticipate (4) 54:15,16;
    59:7;61:24
anticipation (1) 49:2
apologize (1) 60:14
appellate (1) 11:5
application (2) 8:24;
    48:13
applied (2) 46:2;51:19
applies (1) 45:25
apply (1) 8:16
appropriate (2) 60:5,24
approval (4) 13:5;
    23:10;45:1;64:6
approve (14) 3:13;
    10:2;13:3;22:8;35:18;
    37:2,9;38:13;39:14,23;
    40:4;66:17,23;69:23
approved (3) 10:21;
    31:22;40:21
approving (4) 34:1;
    40:5,7;46:8
Archer (50) 40:21;
    46:14,21,24;47:12,17;
    48:3,4,7,8,9,10;49:22;
    50:7,9,23;51:4;52:23;
    53:5,8,10;54:13;55:1,
    7;56:5,10,14,16;57:14;
    58:1,4,8,15,20;59:23;
    60:19;61:12;62:3,10,
    14,15,16,18,18,19,22,
    24;63:14;64:19,21
Archer's (2) 66:1,2
area (1) 54:2
arguing (1) 5:18
argument (1) 5:15
arguments (1) 5:12
arise (2) 20:23;23:23
Arizona (2) 4:19;5:11
around (3) 15:1;63:14,
    15
ARS (1) 35:20
aside (2) 46:25;47:25
aspect (1) 46:9
associated (1) 36:5
association (1) 57:16
assuming (1) 57:12
assurance (1) 48:16
ASU (1) 4:9
attend (1) 47:11
Attorney (4) 11:4;72:6,
    8,12
attorneys (3) 11:6;
    72:11,13
attractive (1) 62:7
audit (13) 11:20,20,21,
    24;13:2,17;14:8,10,11,
    23;20:8;21:8;23:23
audited (4) 12:19,20,
    21;13:23
auditing (3) 14:22;
    21:23;51:12
auditors (1) 14:20

audits (4) 10:20;14:11;
    16:5;17:9
August (2) 3:8,14
authority (3) 23:17;
    47:8;68:18
authorize (1) 29:8
availability (1) 49:2
Avenue (2) 54:1,2
average (1) 8:11
avoid (2) 69:1,5
award (2) 72:5,7
awards (1) 72:13
aware (2) 7:17;23:8
away (4) 6:23;15:6;
    54:11;69:2
aye (8) 3:21;17:17;
    38:18;65:5;67:13;
    70:17;71:13;72:24
ayes (8) 3:22;17:18;
    38:19;65:6;67:14;
    70:18;71:14;72:25

B

back (14) 20:1;24:18;
    25:17,24;26:5;27:2;
    28:8;50:6;54:24;55:2,
    4,8;58:23;65:18
backdoor (1) 7:13
background (2) 6:13;
    34:15
balance (1) 21:16
ballot (2) 9:9,10
bank (4) 12:8;19:2,14;
    36:4
banner (1) 60:15
based (5) 17:7;20:15;
    50:11,17;70:5
basically (8) 11:23;
    14:25;40:13;48:25;
    50:16;52:22;54:5;
    60:21
basis (5) 11:21;14:20,
    25;19:18;47:20
batch (2) 19:12,18
bear (3) 20:20;42:25;
    43:18
becomes (1) 46:12
began (1) 55:3
begin (1) 49:3
beginning (1) 30:1
Below (1) 8:3
benefit (1) 61:16
benefits (1) 12:11
best (4) 6:15;25:15;
    59:14;63:25
beta (7) 48:14,24;
    49:14;59:12,24;60:1,2
better (6) 20:14;21:16;
    33:1;44:24;45:2;46:9
beyond (2) 11:12;43:13
Bickett (5) 11:4;29:16,
    20,23;30:1

big (2) 53:21;57:21
bill (2) 20:3;25:25
bills (3) 26:13,15;27:3
birthday (3) 10:9,10,15
bit (4) 27:5;40:25;63:5;
    64:16
blog (1) 56:24
board (3) 52:4;56:18;
    57:24
bonds (2) 5:5,6
book (1) 20:25
bookend (1) 21:22
bookkeeping (2) 12:1;
    20:8
books (1) 26:19
both (9) 5:2;12:4;
    42:14;44:18;60:22;
    61:11;66:11;68:15;
    69:23
bottom (1) 69:22
bound (1) 65:14
Brain (1) 68:23
branded (1) 49:11
branding (1) 49:15
breach (2) 7:7;41:6
breaking (1) 10:8
brief (1) 5:16
briefly (1) 5:10
bring (2) 51:15;60:4
broad (2) 50:2,9
broader (4) 44:25;
    45:19;46:10;63:17
broken (1) 39:10
brought (1) 37:1
budget (1) 59:15
bunch (1) 63:17
burden (1) 12:17
bureaucratic (1) 21:21
burn (3) 55:18;56:3,6

C

calculate (1) 34:12
call (2) 43:15,17
called (3) 3:4;14:21;
    72:12
came (1) 42:18
campaign (24) 9:4;
    12:7,8;19:2,3;20:5;
    23:23;25:8,9,12,20;
    26:8,9,20;36:4,6,7;
    49:5;52:25;54:3;55:3,
    9;57:20;68:24
campaigns (2) 19:8;
    20:2
can (56) 5:1,9;6:11,16;
    19:17;23:24;24:24,25;
    25:5;27:6,9,10;29:5;
    30:5;32:24;35:3,6;
    39:10;40:24;44:8;45:1;
    46:11;47:1;48:4;49:25;
    50:12;51:14,15,16,17,
    24;53:15,17,24,25;

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(75) $100 - can



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

    54:1,5,15,18,21,21;
    55:22,23,24;56:17,20,
    21,22,23,25;57:1,18;
    59:2,4,14;61:23
candidate (22) 5:9;8:1,
    25;9:4;19:19,21;22:1;
    24:17;27:12,14;28:12,
    14;30:10,12;33:5,7;
    36:8,11;45:8;54:19;
    55:25;56:4
candidates (37) 8:2,13;
    9:14;10:21;11:18,23;
    12:12,25;13:16;16:6;
    17:10;19:8,13;20:1,7,
    20,21;21:24,25;25:7,
    10,23;26:3;28:4,18;
    30:17;31:6,12,14,17;
    33:11;36:15;45:24;
    46:1;54:18;55:16;
    68:20
candidate's (3) 19:2;
    36:4,7
carried (4) 38:24;
    67:19;70:23;71:19
case (7) 5:21;11:8;
    16:12,19;42:21,24;
    68:17
cases (1) 20:1
cash (2) 14:18;56:11
cashier's (4) 19:1,15;
    36:3,5
cashing (1) 21:9
categorized (1) 51:6
caught (1) 35:1
causes (1) 26:1
caveat (1) 24:21
Center (1) 4:19
certain (2) 48:19;56:11
certainly (4) 16:4;
    34:18;42:21;59:14
certification (1) 8:24
certifying (1) 25:12
Chair (3) 29:16;45:3;
    62:13
CHAIRMAN (155) 3:3,
    11,12,16,19,23,25;4:2,
    7;7:21,24;8:10,22;
    9:19,23;10:1,15,18,25;
    13:6,8,9,10,20;15:8;
    16:18;17:2,4,5,11,15,
    19,21,23;18:1;22:11,
    12,13,23;24:2,4,5;25:6;
    26:22,23;27:8,16;
    28:10;29:6,7;30:8,19,
    20,24;31:3,8,19;32:1,7,
    10,16,19,23,24;33:3;
    34:3,13;37:8,17,18,18,
    21,23;38:3,5,7,8,12,16,
    20,22,24;39:7;41:4,16,
    17,19;42:20;45:22;
    46:16,22;48:8,9;50:20,
    23;52:19;55:1;56:3,5;
    57:8,9,14;59:17,18,23;

    60:19;62:11;63:6,9,12;
    64:7,8,18,19,22,25;
    65:4,7,9,11,18;67:4,5,
    7,11,15,17,19,21;70:4,
    7,8,11,15,19,21,23;
    71:1,2,6,11,15,17,19,
    22,25;72:3,11,16,17,
    19,22;73:1,3,5
chamber's (1) 62:21
CHAN (37) 10:12,16,
    17;13:9,10,11;14:4,6;
    16:17;22:11,12,13,19,
    23;24:1;43:16;50:19,
    24,25;56:2,6,8,13,15;
    62:12,13,17,19,23;
    65:3,4;67:4,5,6,8;
    70:14,16
chance (2) 3:9;5:15
change (14) 15:19,20;
    16:2,3,25;18:7;32:25;
    33:14,22;37:11;49:10;
    54:21;57:4;69:21
changes (15) 18:1,5;
    30:22;32:13;34:2;
    35:10,12;36:25;37:9;
    38:10;51:8;57:3,5;
    61:24;69:1
Chan's (1) 10:9
chart (9) 50:16;57:11,
    17,17,22;58:2,3,3,9
chatbot (2) 4:14,23
check (7) 5:16;19:1,9;
    21:9;26:5;36:3,5
checks (6) 19:10,11,14,
    16,18;26:2
chief (1) 11:5
choose (1) 15:4
Chorus (8) 3:22;17:18;
    38:19;65:6;67:14;
    70:18;71:14;72:25
chose (2) 57:18,22
circle (1) 58:3
circulate (4) 18:23;
    29:8;30:22;68:7
circulated (2) 12:15;
    27:10
circulation (1) 29:9
circumstances (1)
    39:19
citation (1) 18:7
cities (1) 54:4
citizen (2) 56:24,24
Citizens (1) 39:3
civics (1) 4:14
civil (2) 5:23,24
clarified (1) 58:16
clarify (4) 13:22;18:17;
    69:6,7
Clean (31) 3:3;5:13,22;
    9:3;11:19;12:10;13:15;
    19:7;20:21;21:23,25;
    24:17;25:9,11;28:2,17;
    30:15;33:10;36:13;

    39:3;54:17,20;60:16;
    61:7,7,8,24;68:6,14,17,
    22
cleaned (1) 47:20
cleaning (1) 35:20
clean-up (3) 16:3;18:6;
    21:20
clear (9) 6:19;20:10;
    27:1,4;29:4,12,21;
    33:25;68:21
clearer (1) 69:12
clears (1) 33:25
click (6) 51:14,15,21;
    52:8;53:10;54:18
close (3) 19:15;22:3;
    23:16
closed (2) 19:16;20:2
Code (12) 39:15;41:13;
    42:7,23;43:21;44:11;
    56:22;57:1;66:10;68:4,
    6;69:10
collect (1) 9:9
collecting (1) 21:9
COLLINS (88) 4:6;
    7:22;8:4;10:3,13,23,
    24;13:7,25;14:3,8;
    15:13,17,25;16:12,15,
    18;17:25;22:18,22;
    24:10,14,20;27:8,18,
    21,25;28:24;29:3,19,
    22,25;30:3;31:23;32:1,
    5,14,18;33:14,23;
    34:13;35:5,9;37:14,17;
    38:1,4,11;39:5,6;40:6,
    10,15;41:3,10,18,24;
    42:2,6,20;43:4,7,10,14,
    17;45:4,6,12,17;46:19,
    22;49:20;50:4,8;52:18,
    24;53:7,9;54:11;60:15,
    18;62:20;63:11;64:10,
    15;65:23;67:21;71:22
Collins' (1) 17:7
color (1) 50:11
comfortable (3) 45:15;
    63:22,22
coming (4) 5:4;25:17;
    40:17;62:24
comma (1) 28:23
commend (1) 72:5
comment (24) 10:22;
    12:15,16;13:12;18:13,
    23;22:5,10;30:22;31:4;
    34:2;35:18;37:2,7;
    38:10;68:8;69:24;70:3,
    4,10;71:4,8,23;72:1
comments (14) 9:23;
    13:8,20;17:2;24:2,6;
    33:24,24;38:5;41:16;
    59:17;62:11;63:6;
    70:25
Commission (43) 3:4,8,
    14;5:13,20,20;18:25;
    19:21;21:18;22:16,20;

    23:5,13;27:2;28:14,22;
    29:17;30:12,15;32:20;
    33:7,9,15,16,19;34:8;
    36:2,10,13,17,18,20,20,
    23;39:13,22;41:1,11;
    61:16;63:22;68:17,18,
    22
COMMISSIONER (184)
    3:11,12,13,17,18,19;
    4:6;7:23,24,25;8:10,19,
    22;9:1,5,12,16,20,22;
    10:9,12,16,17,25;13:9,
    10,11,21,22;14:2,4,5,6;
    15:7,8,9,15,24;16:10,
    13,16,17,19;17:4,5,6,
    12,14,15;22:11,12,13,
    19,22,23;24:1,4,5,6,13,
    15;25:6;26:22,23,24;
    27:9,16,19,24;28:20,
    25;30:2,19,20,21,24;
    31:2,3,18,21,25;32:2,4,
    5,7,9,10,11,12;33:21;
    34:3,4,14;35:15;37:10,
    15,17;38:7,8,9,13,15,
    16;39:6;41:17,19,20,
    25;42:3,17,20;43:2,5,8,
    11,16;45:3,7,13,22;
    46:16,20;50:19,23,25;
    51:2;54:22;55:1,5;
    56:2,5,8,13,15;57:8,9,
    10,14,25;58:2,5,14,19;
    59:15,18,23;60:13,19;
    62:2,12,13,17,19,23;
    63:3,16;64:18,22,23,
    25;65:3,4;67:4,5,6,8,
    10,11;70:7,8,9,12,14,
    15;71:1,2,3,7,10,11;
    72:17,19,21,22
Commissioners (21)
    3:9;4:7;7:22;9:24;
    10:25;16:9;17:3;24:3;
    29:7;37:8;38:6;39:7;
    41:5,16;48:10;52:19;
    62:12;63:7;64:21;
    65:23;70:5
Commission's (5)
    21:11;41:13;42:13,16;
    67:25
committed (3) 18:14,19;
    35:23
committee (2) 50:21;
    51:22
committees (1) 51:20
communicate (1) 7:18
communicated (1) 7:16
community (1) 49:1
complete (1) 30:7
completely (1) 59:7
completes (1) 7:20
compliant (1) 40:8
complies (2) 39:20;
    41:14
computer (1) 47:18

computerized (1) 55:3
concern (3) 43:11,13;
    45:8
concerned (2) 13:14;
    56:24
concluded (1) 73:7
condition (1) 51:9
confidence (1) 12:11
confident (1) 48:23
confirm (1) 37:11
confirmation (1) 6:18
conflict (2) 69:5,8
confused (1) 15:16
confusing (2) 16:13,17
congratulate (1) 72:5
congratulations (2)
    72:9,14
consequence (1) 19:13
consider (2) 26:25;35:3
considered (1) 23:4
consistency (1) 51:25
consistent (3) 39:23;
    52:4;56:18
consistently (1) 44:16
contains (1) 22:14
contents (6) 42:9,11,13;
    43:21,22;44:4
context (3) 44:21;45:2;
    46:10
continue (1) 61:18
continued (1) 47:10
continues (1) 7:6
contribution (1) 44:3
conversation (1) 63:15
cool (1) 37:4
coordinated (1) 50:11
correctly (2) 37:20;51:6
cost (9) 21:8;23:1;
    33:17;34:6,9,12;35:4;
    36:20,21
counsel (2) 11:5;72:4
countdown (1) 59:11
couple (6) 19:25;20:12,
    17;21:3;66:16;68:12
coupled (1) 11:25
course (2) 20:17;53:16
Court (5) 5:11;35:11;
    37:3;68:16,16
courts (1) 68:15
Court's (1) 68:22
cover (1) 65:14
coverage (1) 11:13
create (1) 20:24
cross (1) 49:17
crystal (1) 29:20
curious (1) 9:16
current (1) 60:3
currently (1) 60:10
cut (1) 26:2
cycle (2) 26:10;50:22

D

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(76) candidate - cycle



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

Damien (1) 35:15
data (22) 47:20;48:16,
    17,19,21,22;49:6,6,18;
    51:5,15;54:23,25;55:2,
    21,22;57:2,3,6,19,20;
    58:25
database (2) 55:9;
    60:11
date (1) 6:11
Day (1) 4:8
days (7) 24:12;26:13;
    34:21;68:8;70:10;71:4,
    7
day-to-day (1) 11:6
de (6) 21:17,17;22:25;
    23:4;33:17;36:19
deadline (4) 5:5,8;24:7,
    11
deals (1) 21:6
deemed (2) 19:2;36:6
defense (2) 14:18;
    59:16
defer (3) 8:4,9;46:8
demonstrating (2)
    20:19,21
demonstration (1)
    65:24
Department (1) 6:4
depend (1) 9:8
designed (3) 6:10;
    20:18;69:1
detail (5) 6:5,18,20;
    25:5;67:24
determine (1) 22:25
determined (2) 25:8;
    34:7
determines (4) 33:16;
    34:9;36:19,21
determining (1) 23:1
develop (1) 47:5
developed (1) 48:2
development (2) 47:3;
    51:7
DHS (2) 6:17,19
dictionary (1) 31:10
different (4) 11:2;40:25;
    58:6;68:13
difficult (2) 9:17;12:2
direct (2) 19:3;36:6
directed (2) 18:16;
    35:25
Director (2) 65:21;
    71:21
director's (5) 4:4;7:20;
    23:7,16;70:5
directs (1) 59:21
Disability (1) 4:19
disclosure (1) 49:12
disclosures (2) 49:14;
    60:5
discourage (2) 13:15,
    17
discretion (2) 34:10;

    35:7
discuss (1) 45:20
discussed (2) 35:11;
    47:10
discussion (13) 3:7;4:3;
    10:19;31:4;37:1,20;
    39:1;44:23,25;46:11;
    64:3;65:19;67:22
display (1) 57:18
displayed (1) 60:22
dispute (1) 46:4
disputed (5) 42:18;
    43:24;44:1;45:10,14
distributed (1) 4:18
document (6) 15:12;
    18:4;22:6;35:13;43:19;
    45:16
dollars (1) 21:4
donated (1) 54:2
donation (1) 59:3
done (6) 14:11;23:11,
    18;26:5;34:14;40:23
double-check (1) 42:23
down (4) 31:17;45:10;
    50:14;55:17
download (3) 51:17,18;
    55:23
downloaded (2) 55:22;
    56:21
draft (2) 18:2;27:17
drafted (1) 29:11
drawn (2) 19:1;36:4
due (1) 25:9
during (2) 18:14;35:23
dynamic (1) 52:21

E

easier (2) 8:8;27:23
echo (1) 63:2
edit (1) 16:4
education (1) 4:18
effect (2) 11:16;39:13
efficiency (1) 19:12
efficient (5) 13:1;20:6;
    21:2;39:8;69:12
efficiently (1) 19:17
effort (1) 7:13
either (4) 23:6;40:18;
    43:16;51:5
election (16) 5:2;7:12;
    18:15,16,19;19:24;
    26:10;28:5,19;30:18;
    33:12,13;35:24;36:16;
    50:22;52:22
Elections (28) 3:3;5:4,
    13,22;7:15;9:3;12:10;
    19:8;25:9,11;28:2,17;
    30:16;33:10;36:14;
    39:3;49:16;50:1;54:18,
    20;56:25;60:16;61:7,8,
    25;68:14,17,22
elements (1) 33:13

eliminating (2) 35:19,21
else (3) 19:17;47:6;
    71:21
email (3) 23:6;41:21;
    44:6
emailed (3) 42:4;43:19;
    45:5
embed (2) 56:22;57:1
embedded (1) 56:21
end (4) 11:17;19:11;
    23:23;65:16
ends (1) 12:4
enduser (2) 50:1;52:1
enforce (1) 68:18
enforcement (3) 14:12;
    25:3;67:25
enforcements (1) 23:16
engage (2) 15:4;49:1
engaging (4) 4:24,25;
    47:13,13
engines (1) 53:15
enormous (1) 57:18
ensure (4) 13:18;44:12,
    21;68:5
ensures (1) 12:11
entered (3) 39:21;
    54:25;66:20
entire (1) 34:25
entities (1) 58:10
entity (3) 50:11;51:15;
    53:23
envisioned (1) 22:24
E-Qual (3) 6:6,8;7:1
equally (2) 7:11,17
essentially (10) 16:23;
    19:25;20:24;21:20;
    24:16,20;26:7;44:17;
    54:5;69:19
esteemed (1) 72:4
evaluation (1) 34:14
even (1) 13:1
event (4) 4:10,19;
    11:13;23:3
everybody (6) 5:19,20;
    28:5;29:5;35:1,10
Everyone (3) 13:23;
    28:1;73:6
exact (1) 61:8
Exactly (2) 14:1,3
example (4) 50:12;
    51:19;56:14;59:2
exceed (16) 19:23;
    20:10;28:4,18;30:17,
    17;31:8,17,19;33:1,12,
    19;34:9;36:15,22;
    37:13
exceeds (5) 21:9;23:1;
    33:17;34:6;36:21
except (1) 16:23
excess (2) 23:3;62:8
excited (4) 48:12,22;
    52:5;63:1
exciting (2) 4:23;55:11

excluding (1) 16:22
Excuse (2) 54:22;55:19
executive (18) 4:4;
    7:20;23:7,16;45:20;
    46:12,15;64:2,2,9,12,
    13,16,24;65:1,11,14,16
existing (1) 69:19
expands (1) 11:18
expectations (1) 12:12
expected (1) 62:8
expended (1) 21:11
expenditure (6) 15:11;
    19:3;33:12;36:6,9;
    43:25
expenditures (16)
    18:14;19:20,22;21:14;
    25:18,19;26:20;28:13,
    15;30:11,13;33:6,8;
    35:23;36:11;68:2
expense (1) 20:5
expenses (5) 24:19;
    51:16;52:9;55:18;56:6
experience (1) 23:20
expiration (4) 44:8,10,
    14,18
expired (4) 42:19;
    43:25;44:3;45:10
explained (1) 13:14
explanation (2) 45:14;
    69:4
explicit (1) 27:6
explicitly (1) 60:21
exposed (1) 13:2
expressed (1) 60:23
extensive (3) 48:16;
    51:12;53:20
extremely (1) 53:20

F

face (6) 15:6;19:6,13;
    21:25;25:1,2
fact (7) 13:16;44:7;
    45:25;46:4,5;59:8;
    69:18
fair (2) 15:13,18
fairly (2) 5:16;29:11
fancy (1) 46:23
far (4) 6:11;54:11;
    61:13;62:8
fascinating (2) 50:20;
    51:1
fast (1) 56:8
favor (9) 3:21;17:17;
    38:18;65:5;67:13;69:3;
    70:17;71:13;72:24
fee (2) 19:2;36:5
feedback (1) 49:1
feel (2) 23:14;66:5
fees (1) 19:14
few (2) 24:6;54:24
fiduciary-like (1) 21:13
file (5) 8:23;25:11;

    26:8;52:12;56:1
filed (1) 58:25
files (1) 52:15
filing (1) 52:17
filter (7) 54:17,17,19;
    55:10,12,13,14
filtered (1) 55:15
filters (3) 51:18;54:7,15
final (5) 13:3,5,5;18:12,
    22
finalizing (1) 18:3
Finally (2) 6:1;21:6
finance (19) 12:7,8;
    25:8,9,12,20;26:6,8,10,
    20;36:7;49:5;52:25;
    54:3;55:3,9;57:20;
    60:11;68:24
find (2) 41:21;43:16
finds (1) 41:11
fingers (1) 49:17
first (10) 3:6;11:15;
    18:6;22:24;39:8,11,12;
    42:13;66:16;68:13
fits (3) 46:10;47:9;49:4
flat (1) 69:3
flexibly (1) 5:2
flip (1) 60:9
focus (2) 14:14,15
folks (2) 13:15;48:4
follow (7) 9:5;20:22;
    24:21;39:10;41:8;
    43:14,14
following (3) 39:2;
    65:13,20
footer (1) 61:9
forget (1) 14:22
forgot (1) 20:3
form (2) 23:6;60:1
formal (3) 22:6;35:13;
    40:16
formally (1) 40:20
format (2) 18:3;58:7
formerly (1) 12:22
formula (1) 69:2
forthwith (1) 69:24
forward (3) 41:9;43:5;
    64:5
Foundation (1) 5:12
fourth (1) 10:19
frankly (1) 23:20
friendly (1) 62:21
front (1) 20:13
full (5) 14:10,11;43:15,
    15;49:4
fully (2) 13:19;49:18
function (2) 53:13;54:6
functionality (2) 47:22;
    54:9
functions (1) 62:8
Fund (17) 5:12;9:4;
    14:18;19:1;20:4,6;
    21:2,12,14;25:11;28:2,
    17;30:16;33:10;36:3,

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(77) Damien - Fund



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

    14;61:8
funded (1) 8:17
funding (4) 8:17;9:11;
    11:19;18:19
funds (30) 18:14,18,24;
    19:21;21:8;22:20,21;
    24:9,17;25:7;26:8;
    27:2;28:13,22;30:11,
    14;32:21;33:6,9,16,18,
    20;35:22;36:1,10,12,
    18,22,24;37:13
further (15) 24:2;27:14;
    28:2,16;29:14;30:15;
    32:12;33:10;36:13;
    37:8;38:5;45:13;59:17;
    63:6;66:15
FYI (3) 11:3;23:11,18

G

G1 (2) 21:20;35:19
G2 (1) 21:19
game (2) 12:3;21:24
Garrett (5) 48:10;62:15,
    18,20;66:1
Garrett's (1) 53:1
Gary (1) 62:22
gave (4) 41:6;58:12;
    59:3,5
Gen (1) 4:25
general (22) 12:20,21;
    18:14,15,16,18,19;
    19:24;28:4,19;30:18;
    31:9;33:12,13;35:22,
    23,25;36:15;43:23;
    45:9;49:2;60:24
General's (1) 11:4
given (4) 21:10;27:9;
    42:24;50:21
gives (1) 52:11
goal (1) 49:5
goals (1) 53:21
goes (5) 12:5;14:9;
    50:14;55:4;61:9
good (13) 5:18;8:12,
    18;9:21;22:2,3;37:24;
    39:18;45:23;48:2;
    55:14;66:4,8
goods (2) 18:15;35:24
Google (1) 53:14
government (2) 4:10;
    60:7
government-verified (1)
    61:5
granted (1) 47:20
graph (3) 57:1,3,5
graphic (1) 60:1
graphs (3) 55:20;56:20,
    25
great (2) 4:22;48:6
greater (1) 21:15
green (2) 52:3;58:17
group (1) 51:23

GRRC (2) 39:16;42:14
GRRC's (1) 66:11
guess (14) 4:13;6:15;
    8:4;11:14;22:9;27:21,
    22,22;34:19;43:2;
    47:23;56:19;58:22;
    64:10
guidance (1) 68:3
guys (1) 29:5

H

Hail (2) 59:2,4
hand (3) 20:19,21;
    56:11
handed (1) 45:4
handle (2) 20:15;64:7
handled (1) 5:24
hands (1) 63:4
hang (2) 42:25;63:14
happen (1) 9:6
happened (3) 6:5,13;
    23:24
happens (1) 51:11
happy (3) 10:10,15;
    46:17
hash (1) 64:17
heading (7) 15:14,18,
    19;16:5,22,24;43:23
held (1) 5:11
help (5) 13:18;23:22;
    31:16;69:6,7
helpful (4) 30:4;40:1,
    16;52:20
here's (2) 51:19,19
hesitation (1) 47:2
hey (1) 20:2
historical (2) 54:23,25
hold (3) 19:12;26:13;
    45:1
home (1) 54:12
Homeland (1) 6:4
honest (1) 15:3
hoping (1) 70:1
hopper (1) 12:24
Horne (1) 68:16
hosted (1) 4:10
housed (1) 61:19
housekeeping (1) 19:5
hover (1) 50:13
hovering (1) 57:13
hundred (1) 21:4

I

idea (3) 8:13;37:24;
    47:24
IE (1) 58:11
images (1) 56:21
impact (1) 57:22
implicit (1) 27:5
important (13) 6:23,23;
    7:5,8,11,17;12:14;

    28:7;40:23;42:15;
    44:20;45:24;47:7
impressed (1) 62:6
impressive (1) 62:6
incidents (1) 62:4
include (3) 39:16;
    43:20;49:6
included (4) 41:21;
    42:5;43:3,21
includes (1) 39:17
including (3) 29:10;
    30:1;47:12
income (4) 21:15;
    51:16;55:18;56:7
inconvenience (1)
    46:21
increase (1) 69:3
incredible (1) 63:3
independent (4) 22:1;
    43:24;46:1;68:2
index (9) 42:5,19,24;
    43:9,12,12,20;45:9,15
indicates (1) 67:22
indication (1) 43:12
individuals (3) 50:15;
    58:23;59:1
inefficient (1) 19:10
inflation (1) 69:3
influencers (2) 57:21,23
info (5) 51:2,5;52:10,
    17;55:24
information (20) 5:2,3,
    9;6:11,14;8:1;34:16;
    45:1;51:12,17;52:2,14;
    55:24;57:7;58:6;61:3,
    5,17,22,23
initially (2) 8:19;13:13
input (1) 49:1
instances (1) 19:25
integrity (1) 13:18
Interagency (5) 39:20,
    24;41:14;66:20;67:2
interest (1) 6:25
interested (3) 8:15,21,
    23
interesting (1) 52:20
internal (2) 26:1;48:14
interrelated (1) 39:9
into (22) 7:13;18:3;
    35:12;39:21;44:25,25;
    46:10,11;49:4;52:10,
    13;54:5,19;55:4,22;
    56:22;62:5;64:8,13,16;
    65:1;66:20
intuitive (1) 62:7
intuitively (1) 57:19
invoices (1) 20:13
invoicing (1) 21:23
involved (3) 7:12;26:4;
    47:25
IRS (2) 52:16;53:8
ISA (8) 40:9;41:9;47:9;
    60:6,20;61:15;65:24;

    66:18
issuance (1) 36:5
issue (11) 5:21,22,23;
    11:15;21:7;35:5;46:25;
    47:7,10;69:2,8
issues (9) 11:14;19:6;
    20:23;23:22;39:2;
    45:20;47:24;63:16;
    65:20
item (8) 3:6,7;4:3;
    10:19;32:16;41:23;
    63:10;65:19
Items (3) 22:9;42:18;
    63:18
iterations (1) 42:22

J

J3 (2) 22:14;37:10
J4 (1) 32:19
January (3) 49:2;53:19;
    60:9
job (2) 5:18;61:17
Joe (3) 5:17;11:6,9
join (1) 61:21
June (1) 10:22
jurisdictional (1) 5:23
jurisdictions (2) 49:4,7

K

Kara (2) 11:5,9
keep (2) 6:10;23:24
kept (1) 37:3
KIMBLE (57) 3:11,12,
    13,17;17:4,5,6,12;31:2,
    3;32:2,8,9,10;33:21;
    38:7,8,9,13;41:17,19,
    20,25;42:3,17,21;43:2,
    5,8,11;45:3,7,13,22;
    46:16,20;54:22;55:2,5;
    59:18,24;60:13,19;
    62:2;63:3,16,16;67:10,
    11;70:7,8,9,12;71:10,
    12;72:17,19
kind (14) 8:20;14:12;
    15:4,15;20:14;21:13;
    27:5;39:10;52:10;53:5;
    57:19,21,23;64:16
kinds (3) 5:6;14:19;
    23:17
knowledge (2) 4:15;
    25:16
known (1) 46:5
knows (1) 5:20

L

landing (4) 49:9,13;
    61:13;62:1
language (15) 18:8,17;
    21:13;29:10,18,24;
    35:22;37:6;38:11;

    44:12;69:12,14,15,16,
    16
languages (1) 53:14
largely (1) 21:21
larger (1) 57:23
LARSEN (15) 8:10,22;
    9:2,7,13,19;25:6;
    28:10;29:2,10;30:8,23;
    31:7;32:23;33:2
Last (10) 6:1,5;11:17;
    20:17,17;31:5;32:19;
    44:14;50:22;62:17
late (2) 25:25;26:16
later (3) 9:6;25:24;
    27:23
launched (2) 4:12,12
launches (1) 63:5
Law (2) 4:20;66:14
least (4) 6:9,16;44:19;
    66:12
left (3) 57:12;58:6,9
Legacy (1) 5:12
legal (8) 14:18;40:24;
    45:2,19;46:10;47:24;
    63:15,18
legally (1) 64:17
legislation (1) 69:2
legislative (5) 10:21;
    11:18;16:6;17:10;
    55:14
lengthy (1) 26:3
less (2) 15:6;62:21
letter (3) 18:2;19:19;
    41:6
likelihood (1) 15:6
likely (1) 23:6
likes (1) 56:24
likewise (1) 46:1
limit (1) 23:2
limited (3) 24:23;42:8;
    44:6
limits (8) 19:24;20:11;
    24:22;28:19;30:18;
    36:16;44:3;68:24
line (2) 8:6;69:22
lined (1) 69:14
lines (1) 66:22
link (6) 5:14;53:11;
    60:3,4,12,12
links (1) 51:21
listed (1) 8:1
listening (1) 47:13
little (9) 6:5;13:14;25:5;
    27:5;40:25;55:11,11;
    63:5;69:12
live (1) 53:25
living (1) 12:12
lobbyist (1) 62:21
logo (2) 49:10,12
logos (1) 60:22
look (11) 3:9;14:17;
    20:25;28:25;39:11;
    42:9;44:8;46:13;48:18;

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(78) funded - look



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

    50:8;57:20
looking (11) 4:13;12:3;
    24:11;32:17;41:11;
    43:3;44:9,9;45:8;53:3;
    57:21
lose (2) 12:18,20
losing (1) 54:9
lot (4) 6:15;52:7;53:17;
    62:9

M

magazine (3) 72:6,12,
    12
magic (1) 48:5
main (2) 61:14;63:21
maintain (1) 60:3
major (3) 34:24;44:11;
    61:16
makes (8) 20:10;22:14;
    33:25;41:2,5,7;68:21,
    24
making (3) 15:19;
    21:14;29:4
Maledon (1) 5:17
manager (1) 48:11
mandate (1) 7:3
mandatory (3) 31:13,
    13,15
many (4) 8:16,17;9:8,
    14
Mary (9) 39:12,25;41:1;
    46:11;64:1,10,11;72:4,
    9
Mary's (1) 66:6
mass (1) 40:3
material (1) 42:4
materials (2) 4:18;68:9
matter (1) 12:22
may (23) 6:6;18:1,5;
    19:23;22:19;23:22;
    28:4,18;30:17;31:8,9,
    10,11,14,14;32:25;
    33:15;36:18;44:24;
    49:20;52:18;56:2;64:1
maybe (4) 27:4,6;28:8,
    21
mean (10) 11:22;
    14:13;27:10;29:12;
    39:6;52:3,19;57:15;
    62:14;63:13
means (8) 21:13,16;
    22:16,21;31:13;58:17,
    17;61:1
meat (1) 56:17
meeting (8) 3:4,8,14;
    6:9;34:20;47:2;65:13,
    16
meetings (2) 6:9;47:11
meets (1) 46:23
members (2) 29:17;
    41:4
memo (3) 46:24;62:25;

    66:1
memos (1) 53:1
mention (1) 5:10
mentioned (1) 53:1
mercy (1) 53:6
messages (1) 7:16
MEYER (60) 13:22;
    14:2,5;17:14,16;24:4,5,
    6,13,15;25:7;26:22,23,
    24;27:9,16,19;28:20,
    25;30:2,19,20,21,25;
    31:18,21,25;32:4,5,11;
    34:3,4,14;35:15;37:10,
    15,18;38:15,16;51:2;
    57:8,9,10,15,25;58:2,5,
    14,19;59:15;64:18,22,
    23;65:1;71:1,2,3,7;
    72:21,22
Michelle (1) 53:22
might (10) 8:8;12:23;
    13:15;26:14,15;34:8;
    45:2,20;51:5;64:15
millennials (1) 4:25
million (2) 58:12,13
mind (1) 10:5
mine (1) 37:23
minimus (6) 21:17,17;
    22:25;23:4;33:17;
    36:19
minutes (3) 3:8,14,17
missing (1) 32:21
misspoke (1) 14:7
mistaken (1) 39:24
mockup (1) 47:21
money (24) 12:4,5;
    21:11;24:24,24,25;
    25:2,10,17;26:13;
    46:14,18;48:11;50:10;
    55:6,12;56:9;58:20,25;
    59:9,11;61:7,7;65:25
monies (6) 19:23;21:5;
    28:16;30:14;33:8;
    36:12
monkeying (1) 15:1
month (2) 44:14;72:6
monthly (1) 72:12
months (4) 20:1,13,18;
    25:24
more (22) 6:5,18;9:23;
    11:11;12:25;17:2;
    19:17;21:25;23:11;
    24:18;25:5;27:1,6;
    29:6;31:15;44:16;
    49:23;55:11,13;58:22;
    62:11;69:12
most (13) 6:22;7:4;
    15:2;28:6;39:8;42:8,
    14;44:19,20;45:23;
    50:13;52:17;57:20
mostly (1) 5:6
motion (37) 3:16;4:2;
    10:2,4,14;13:4;16:20,
    21;17:11,23;29:18;

    30:6,24;32:4,6,12;
    37:6;38:6,12,24;41:10;
    64:25;66:22,23;67:7,
    12,19;70:1,4,11,23;
    71:4,6,19,23,24;72:16
motions (3) 37:9;70:2,
    25
mouse (3) 54:9,11;
    55:16
mouth (1) 59:9
move (17) 3:13;30:21;
    38:9;40:1,21,24;41:9;
    44:25;46:11;57:6;64:5,
    23,23;67:6,21;70:9;
    72:17
moved (1) 17:7
much (8) 15:6;24:23,
    24;56:16;62:10;64:11,
    11;72:15
multiple (2) 53:23,23
must (12) 19:21;27:13;
    28:15;30:13;31:11,12,
    13,17;32:25,25;33:7;
    36:11
myself (1) 15:16

N

name (6) 48:10;51:22,
    23;53:19;54:1;62:17
National (1) 4:8
necessary (2) 6:21;
    42:12
need (13) 10:1;20:4;
    24:9;25:10,25;26:14;
    27:17;34:23;35:14;
    48:19;61:17;62:5;64:8
needing (1) 20:13
needs (4) 16:11;29:23;
    63:14;64:3
negotiations (1) 66:7
new (5) 18:17;28:16;
    35:22;69:16,16
newest (1) 57:7
news (1) 10:8
next (4) 5:5,7;28:3;40:2
nice (1) 4:17
nobody (1) 12:21
none (1) 7:11
nonparticipating (1)
    44:2
normal (2) 8:3;9:18
normalization (1) 53:19
note (3) 20:3;69:14;
    72:3
noted (2) 44:10;48:14
notice (11) 6:17;18:3;
    22:6;23:6,15;39:17;
    41:6;45:24;66:12;68:8;
    69:18
notified (6) 21:18;
    22:17,20;32:20;33:19;
    36:23

number (5) 7:5;8:13;
    22:15;34:5;56:11
numbers (2) 8:18;9:21

O

objection (1) 34:18
objections (1) 66:11
obligated (1) 23:15
obvious (1) 58:16
obviously (7) 6:24;
    16:16;23:12;29:6;
    52:16;58:24;60:2
occasionally (2) 19:13;
    21:7
occur (1) 64:3
occurred (3) 7:7;23:8;
    25:17
October (7) 5:8;48:23;
    59:8;63:24;64:6;66:18,
    25
off (2) 32:15;68:23
office (21) 6:12,19;7:5,
    10;11:4;19:11;22:7;
    26:1;41:22;47:11;48:3;
    54:14;60:16;61:19,20,
    25;66:7,21;67:1;68:10;
    69:21
official (1) 6:17
offline (1) 6:8
often (3) 21:25;23:19,
    21
O'GRADY (9) 40:4,7,
    12;41:2,4;64:13;72:4,
    10,15
Olive (2) 53:25;54:2
onboarding (1) 49:3
once (10) 24:17;27:1;
    28:22,22;30:14;33:9;
    36:12;48:17;59:24;
    60:2
one (28) 6:9;7:5;12:9,
    16;19:6,10,10;20:19;
    28:20;34:4;35:15,23;
    37:11;42:15;49:23;
    52:5;53:18,21,23;
    54:23;55:14;56:19,25;
    58:9,10,15,22;60:13
only (9) 13:12,16;22:4;
    27:7;29:16,17;46:12;
    54:20;59:1
onto (1) 40:24
open (1) 64:11
operations (1) 64:1
opportunity (6) 4:15,22;
    10:10;23:12;62:14;
    66:2
Opposed (8) 3:23;
    17:19;38:20;65:7;
    67:15;70:19;71:15;
    73:1
opposition (1) 58:21
optimized (2) 49:18;

    51:6
oral (1) 5:11
orange (1) 50:15
order (6) 3:4;9:10;
    34:21;63:25;68:5;69:5
organization (2) 52:9,
    15
organizations (2) 52:6;
    58:12
original (1) 43:19
Osborn (1) 5:17
others (1) 47:12
otherwise (2) 21:12;
    40:23
ought (1) 21:4
out (20) 5:16;6:12;8:6;
    12:5;16:4;19:15;20:2;
    21:3;22:3;23:16;35:10,
    16;39:10;54:17;55:12;
    56:19;64:2,17;69:14;
    71:4
outlines (2) 42:13;
    46:25
outlying (1) 34:2
outstanding (13) 19:14,
    20,22;26:12,15;28:13,
    15;30:11,13;33:5,8;
    36:9,11
over (10) 20:17,17;
    46:4;47:23;50:13,21,
    21;55:19;59:2;60:10
over- (1) 5:6
overall (1) 50:17
overrides (1) 5:6
overview (4) 49:17;
    50:1,2,9
own (2) 24:22;60:25
Oxford (1) 31:10

P

packet (3) 7:1;42:8;
    44:6
PACs (2) 52:3;58:12
page (20) 42:10,10,11;
    43:6,7,22,22;44:5,5;
    49:10,13;50:1;52:10,
    17;54:19;55:25;59:20,
    21;61:13;62:1
pages (2) 43:3,20
paid (2) 25:25;61:6
Pardon (2) 14:6,6
part (6) 4:14;7:3;53:15;
    61:15;68:3;69:17
participants (1) 54:20
participating (28) 8:1,
    13,18,24;9:14;10:21;
    16:5;17:10;19:19;
    27:12,13;28:4,12,14,
    18;30:10,12,16;31:6,
    12,14,17;33:4,7,11;
    36:8,10,14
particular (2) 44:21;

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(79) looking - particular



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

    46:9
parties (1) 52:3
partnered (1) 4:9
party (1) 14:15
pass (1) 3:17
passed (5) 11:17;12:1;
    17:23;20:12,16
passes (1) 4:2
past (4) 11:21;21:2;
    25:23;62:4
PATON (24) 3:18,20;
    7:23,24,25;8:10,19,22;
    9:1,5,12,16,20,22;15:7,
    8,9,15,24;16:10,13,16,
    19;27:24
Paula (6) 11:3,10;
    29:14;34:15,15;35:2
pay (3) 20:3;24:18;
    27:3
payment (5) 40:17,19;
    63:24;66:17,24
PDF (1) 56:1
PDFs (1) 53:11
people (13) 8:14;9:17;
    12:3,9;13:17;15:2;
    39:10;46:7;50:5;51:14;
    52:8;57:20;59:21
per (1) 19:23
percent (2) 56:12;68:23
percentages (1) 50:18
perhaps (1) 6:18
period (5) 18:15,19;
    25:14;35:24,25
permitted (6) 27:15;
    28:3,18;30:16;33:11;
    36:14
personal (6) 19:22;
    24:23;28:16;30:14;
    33:8;36:12
perspective (6) 6:24;
    7:2;19:7;42:15;44:19,
    20
petition (1) 9:9
petty (2) 14:18;60:14
phrase (1) 30:2
phraseology (1) 61:9
pick (4) 52:14;56:25;
    57:1,6
picks (1) 57:6
pie (2) 50:16;58:3
piece (2) 19:4;35:15
pieces (1) 47:19
place (2) 34:21;59:20
play (1) 63:4
pleasure (1) 15:22
podium (1) 48:5
point (11) 6:23;8:6;
    12:7;29:12;32:2;34:19;
    48:25;56:19;58:16;
    60:8;61:14
policies (1) 67:25
popular (1) 4:16
position (2) 5:18;12:2

positive (3) 47:15,16;
    66:4
positively (1) 66:5
possible (8) 3:7;4:4;
    10:19;39:2;65:19;
    67:23;68:6,10
post (1) 44:24
potatoes (1) 56:17
potential (1) 25:3
power (1) 55:20
powerful (1) 53:12
preliminary (2) 35:18;
    47:19
present (1) 46:15
presented (2) 48:22;
    49:14
prestigious (1) 72:7
pretty (3) 37:4;56:16;
    59:3
preview (1) 4:11
previewed (1) 4:11
primary (12) 12:19,19,
    20,23,23;19:23;28:19;
    30:17;31:9;33:12,13;
    36:15
printed (1) 56:20
prior (2) 31:11;42:21
probably (5) 8:12;
    15:19;62:5;63:13;
    64:15
problem (4) 16:8;17:1;
    26:1;55:23
procedural (2) 11:9;
    16:8
procedures (1) 14:23
proceedings (2) 5:24;
    73:7
process (9) 8:15;19:18;
    23:9;25:1;26:2,4;47:3;
    49:3;53:20
processes (1) 19:11
product (1) 47:25
program (3) 46:14;
    47:3;65:25
progress (6) 46:13,17;
    47:1;48:12;63:24;66:4
project (2) 48:11;63:1
promoting (1) 61:22
promulgated (1) 44:22
Prop (1) 59:5
properly (1) 69:18
prophylactic (1) 20:24
proposal (1) 13:14
proposals (1) 10:20
propose (1) 28:21
proposed (1) 71:5
ProPublica (1) 52:13
Protection (1) 69:1
provide (6) 5:2;6:4,20;
    23:15;35:13;68:3
provided (3) 34:15;
    46:24;64:4
provides (3) 6:18;

    23:12;69:5
providing (1) 49:5
provision (1) 60:20
Provisions (2) 43:23;
    45:9
public (26) 5:19,21;
    10:22;12:15;18:13,23;
    22:5,10;34:2;37:2,7;
    38:10;48:24;49:14;
    65:16;66:12;68:3,8;
    69:8,24;70:3,10;71:4,7,
    23,25
publication (8) 13:3;
    22:8;40:11,13;42:22;
    46:25;66:9,11
publicly (1) 46:5
publish (7) 15:21;38:9;
    68:8;69:24,25;70:10;
    71:7
published (4) 18:12;
    42:1;44:18;69:9
publisher (1) 44:17
publishing (1) 46:6
purpose (1) 44:12
purposes (3) 19:12;
    42:7;45:21
pursuant (4) 18:25;
    35:20;36:2;66:6
put (11) 6:12;12:2;
    22:6;24:8;31:17;37:15,
    24;59:9,9,10;71:4
putting (7) 26:25;46:25;
    47:5,6,24;51:9;54:16

Q

qualified (1) 11:12
qualify (2) 9:8,10
qualitatively (1) 61:2
quality (1) 48:16
quantitatively (1) 61:2
quarter (1) 56:7
query (1) 54:8
quick (2) 4:7;28:9
quite (3) 26:3;49:18;
    54:24
quote/unquote (1)
    69:15

R

R2-20-106 (7) 28:11;
    29:9;30:9,22;33:3;
    34:2;38:10
R2-20-109 (6) 43:24;
    45:10;67:23,24;68:7;
    70:10
R2-20-111 (6) 44:1;
    67:23;68:12,12;71:5,8
R2-20-2 (1) 22:10
R2-20-4.0 (1) 13:5
R2-20-402.01 (3)
    11:16,16;16:23

R2-20-402-01 (2)
    10:20;17:8
raised (1) 63:17
random (11) 10:20;
    11:21,23;13:17,23;
    15:9,11,23;16:22,24;
    17:9
randomly (1) 15:10
rarely (1) 23:20
rate (3) 55:19;56:3,6
rather (5) 27:11;35:16;
    40:3;53:23;65:25
ratio (2) 55:19;56:6
read (10) 17:9;28:8;
    30:23;32:15;33:4;
    34:25;35:9;37:7,11;
    38:11
reading (2) 15:14,18
Reagan (2) 6:2;53:22
real (5) 4:7;28:9;48:17;
    51:2,4
really (24) 4:11,22,22,
    23;5:22;6:14,23;8:11,
    12,14;16:8,8;23:18;
    26:18,19;34:17;39:9;
    50:25;57:11,22;61:3;
    63:3;66:24;69:17
reason (1) 68:4
recall (2) 6:6;44:14
recap (2) 65:24;67:24
receipt (1) 15:11
receive (4) 9:11;23:5;
    44:5,6
received (6) 6:3;25:24;
    26:16;51:23;72:5,13
recent (1) 52:17
recirculating (1) 69:7
recirculation (1) 16:3
recognized (2) 72:7,13
recollection (1) 42:18
recommend (8) 5:15;
    16:19;29:5,7;46:24;
    63:11;68:7,11
recommendation (8)
    17:7;41:8;63:23;64:5;
    65:22;66:17,23;70:6
recommendations (1)
    66:16
recommended (1) 30:2
recommending (2)
    39:13;70:1
reconcile (7) 19:22;
    27:13;28:15;30:13;
    31:12;33:7;36:11
record (9) 28:9;29:4,11,
    13;30:7;33:25;35:12;
    53:15;54:5
records (1) 55:9
recovery (5) 23:1;
    33:17;34:6,9;36:21
Red (1) 58:17
reduction (1) 68:23
reenacting (1) 69:19

refer (1) 15:10
reflect (4) 54:20;57:4,4,
    17
reflecting (1) 38:10
reflection (1) 45:16
reflects (5) 12:9;45:7;
    48:20;51:13;60:6
reframe (1) 48:19
regarding (1) 47:3
registered (1) 4:16
Registration (7) 4:8,10;
    5:5,8;6:7,25;7:14
regular (1) 65:18
reimburse (1) 20:4
reimbursements (6)
    27:14;28:2,17;30:15;
    33:10;36:13
reinforces (1) 20:7
reiterates (1) 68:13
relate (1) 47:8
related (3) 39:2;63:18;
    65:20
Relatedly (1) 68:11
relates (1) 47:7
relation (1) 48:2
relationship (1) 47:16
release (9) 48:15,24;
    49:3;53:19;59:8,12;
    60:1,2,9
relevant (1) 42:8
remain (1) 57:2
remainder (1) 19:9
remember (1) 72:8
removal (1) 18:8
repeat (1) 29:23
report (10) 4:4;7:20;
    10:8;23:7;25:8,9,12;
    26:6,8;36:7
reported (5) 6:3;12:9;
    36:7;48:21;52:11
reporter (1) 37:3
reporter's (1) 35:12
reporting (5) 12:8;
    25:14;44:2;49:5;60:3
reportings (1) 43:25
reports (14) 6:3;12:7;
    25:20;26:21;47:8,8;
    52:12,25,25;53:1,2;
    56:1,1;58:25
represented (1) 62:1
Republic (1) 6:2
republication (3) 39:14,
    16;41:12
republishing (1) 69:7
require (1) 16:2
requirements (1) 44:2
reservation (2) 66:19;
    67:1
resolution (1) 66:8
resolved (1) 63:19
resolves (1) 22:3
respect (5) 40:10,12;
    67:25;68:1,12

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(80) parties - respect



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

responded (1) 41:6
response (17) 3:24;4:1;
    17:20,22;38:21,23;
    63:8;65:8,10;67:16,18;
    70:20,22;71:18;72:2;
    73:2,4
responsibility (2) 20:20;
    61:20
rest (1) 48:3
restate (1) 30:5
results (2) 7:12,15
resumes (1) 65:17
retrospect (1) 53:4
return (20) 21:8,10;
    22:19,21;23:3;24:9;
    25:7,11,22;26:8;27:1;
    32:21;33:15,18,20;
    34:7,10;36:18,22,24
returned (22) 18:20,24,
    25;19:21;21:5;23:2;
    26:5;28:14,22;30:12,
    14;33:6,9,17,18;36:1,3,
    10,12,19,22;37:13
returns (2) 21:17;24:17
reviewed (1) 66:1
revision (1) 42:14
Right (29) 9:7;13:23,
    24;17:25;21:15;31:20,
    25;34:13,17;37:12,14;
    40:15;41:10;42:2;43:4;
    44:9;45:23;48:15;
    49:10;50:11;51:13,22,
    23;52:6,18;55:24;
    56:17;58:3;59:6
rights (2) 66:19;67:1
role (1) 44:17
Roth (1) 5:17
roughly (1) 39:20
roundtable (1) 4:25
rule (41) 10:19;11:17,
    19;12:14,18;13:4,12,
    19;16:21;17:1,8;19:3;
    20:10;21:11;23:11;
    24:16;26:12,17;27:1,5;
    28:10;30:9;33:3;34:2,
    25;36:2;42:13,16;43:7;
    44:13,15,18,21;45:25;
    46:2,5;47:7,7;69:4;
    70:2;71:5
rules (27) 11:1;12:1;
    15:20;19:4,5;20:8,12,
    15,16,22,25;21:19,21,
    22;22:6;39:14,17;
    41:13;66:9,13,13;
    67:23,24;68:2;69:18,
    19,23
ruling (1) 68:22
running (1) 13:15

S

same (6) 4:18;11:21;
    53:13;58:5;68:11;71:3

Sara (16) 8:4,7,9;
    24:11;25:5;28:6,8;
    29:23;30:5;31:4;32:15,
    19;35:14;47:2,10,25
Sara's (1) 33:24
satisfied (1) 48:1
saw (1) 54:24
saying (3) 9:17;27:17;
    28:21
scale (4) 57:12,15,25;
    58:1
schedule (1) 59:7
schematic (1) 51:8
scope (1) 14:22
screen (1) 50:5
screens (1) 50:6
scrutiny (1) 22:1
search (6) 53:12,14,14;
    54:6;60:11;62:8
searchable (2) 55:5,8
searching (1) 43:18
second (26) 3:7,18,19;
    17:13,14,15;31:1,2;
    32:3,11,16,16;38:14,
    15;65:2,3;67:9,10;
    70:13,14,15;71:9,10,
    11;72:20,21
seconds (4) 38:17;
    65:4;67:12;72:23
Secretary (14) 6:2,20;
    7:16;22:7;40:22;41:22;
    44:15;59:21;60:16;
    66:3,21,25;68:9;69:25
Secretary's (13) 6:12,
    19;7:5,10;40:8;41:12;
    47:11;48:3;61:19,19,
    25;66:7;69:21
Section (9) 18:9,24;
    24:7;39:3;43:9,24;
    44:1;45:10;65:13
sections (1) 42:9
Security (1) 6:4
seed (1) 24:24
seeing (3) 62:25,25;
    63:2
seemed (1) 6:4
seems (1) 6:17
seethemoneycom (2)
    59:19;60:25
selected (1) 15:10
send (1) 19:10
sense (2) 41:5,8
sensitive (1) 53:2
sent (1) 42:6
sentence (8) 27:11;
    28:1,3,16,21;31:5,11;
    32:20
separate (2) 65:14;70:2
September (2) 3:5;5:13
serially (1) 11:15
serious (3) 16:7;17:1;
    25:2
Service (5) 39:21,24;

    41:14;66:20;67:2
services (2) 18:15;
    35:24
session (16) 45:21;
    46:12,15;64:2,3,9,11,
    12,14,16,24;65:1,12,
    14,16,19
set (11) 11:1;12:13,18;
    14:19,21,21;24:11;
    47:18;48:19;50:5;
    55:10
severely (1) 24:23
shall (24) 18:25;28:3,
    17;30:16;31:13,18,19;
    32:15,25;33:1,1,11,11,
    19;36:3,6,14,15,22;
    37:15,19,20,22,25
shalls (1) 38:2
shores (1) 26:18
show (10) 40:22;47:18;
    48:12;51:22;53:22;
    55:15,17,25;57:22;
    60:16
showing (5) 53:16;
    57:10;58:10,11;62:24
shows (3) 47:21;50:16;
    57:23
signal (1) 18:11
signatures (1) 9:10
significant (2) 12:17;
    15:20
similar (1) 68:25
simply (4) 16:21;28:1;
    44:10;56:6
single (1) 12:16
site (12) 49:11;57:2,4;
    59:10,11,25;60:3,4,7,
    11,12,23
sitting (1) 54:16
six (1) 20:18
sizable (1) 59:3
skeptical (1) 62:4
slow (1) 49:20
so-called (1) 68:19
SolarCity (1) 50:12
Somehow (1) 16:10
someone (1) 62:3
someplace (1) 51:10
sometime (1) 8:12
sometimes (1) 51:6
somewhat (1) 58:16
somewhere (1) 4:17
soon (1) 68:10
sorry (10) 10:24;14:4;
    34:5;35:2;40:5;54:9,
    10;55:16;62:15,19
sort (6) 6:17;14:9;16:2;
    31:14;47:21;53:2
sosgov (1) 59:25
sounds (2) 30:7;60:14
special (1) 26:2
specific (2) 14:13;21:7
specifically (2) 48:11;

    72:9
spectrum (1) 12:4
spend (3) 24:24,25,25
spender (1) 22:2
spenders (1) 46:2
spending (6) 19:24;
    20:11;28:19;30:18;
    33:13;36:16
spent (9) 50:10,13,17;
    55:12;56:9,12;58:10,
    20;59:1
spring (1) 8:12
staff (18) 13:13;22:24;
    23:6;33:15,16;34:8,10;
    35:6,6;36:17,18,20;
    39:13;40:18,19;47:12;
    63:23;64:4
staff's (1) 44:19
stands (2) 49:10;65:25
start (5) 8:18;9:21;18:1,
    2;49:16
starting (1) 24:7
state (5) 19:11;28:11;
    29:18;44:15;49:6
stated (1) 70:12
statement (1) 45:4
statements (1) 49:12
State's (8) 22:7;41:22;
    59:21;60:16;66:3,21,
    25;68:9
static (1) 57:5
statues (1) 25:4
statute (1) 68:14
statutory (1) 18:7
stay (2) 26:18;37:12
step (4) 9:3;22:3;40:2;
    48:4
steps (1) 20:9
still (6) 9:9,13;24:21;
    42:24;44:10;48:18
street (1) 54:1
stress (2) 7:11;22:4
stressed (1) 7:10
striking (1) 17:8
struggling (1) 41:20
student (1) 4:9
students (1) 4:15
stuff (3) 20:14;40:25;
    63:18
subject (5) 11:20,23;
    66:19;67:1,3
submit (2) 22:7;27:3
submitted (1) 69:15
Subsection (10) 18:25;
    21:6;24:16;28:11;30:9,
    23;33:4;35:19;36:2,17
substance (1) 15:20
substantially (1) 41:14
substantive (2) 16:1,25
suggest (4) 26:25;
    28:21;37:6;45:19
suggestion (2) 27:20,25
summary (1) 6:10

summer (1) 6:6
superfluous (1) 69:13
Superior (1) 68:16
supervises (1) 11:5
supervisor (1) 11:7
support (3) 13:12,19;
    58:17
Supreme (3) 5:11;
    68:15,22
sure (13) 11:13;15:3;
    16:15;21:23;22:16,21;
    29:25;48:20;49:8;51:8,
    20;53:21;63:21
surgery (1) 34:24
surplus (1) 18:8
system (14) 6:7,25;7:7,
    14;12:3,8,10;13:18;
    15:2;22:2;47:18;49:20;
    54:3;55:20
systems (1) 55:3

T

tab (1) 52:6
table (7) 34:19;42:9,10,
    12;43:21,22;44:4
tabs (1) 51:25
takeaways (1) 7:4
talk (5) 29:5;40:3;64:1,
    11,12
talked (1) 4:24
talking (1) 7:12
tapped (1) 52:13
Taylor (4) 50:19;56:3;
    62:15,20
team (2) 51:7;66:3
technical (2) 68:25,25
techniques (1) 53:13
term (3) 14:22;15:9;
    16:4
terms (9) 5:24;12:4;
    15:22;18:7;21:22;
    24:22;29:3;66:9,18
terribly (1) 7:8
test (1) 4:15
tested (1) 49:23
testing (1) 48:16
third (1) 4:3
Thomas (3) 34:15;35:3,
    8
though (1) 13:1
thought (3) 23:14;
    27:19;28:20
thoughts (1) 29:14
three (2) 55:20;60:21
threshold (1) 34:17
Thursday (1) 3:4
ticky-tack (1) 23:22
tie (1) 54:5
timeline (1) 55:17
TITLA (99) 3:3,12,16,
    19,23,25;4:2,7;7:21,24;
    9:23;10:1,15,18;13:6,8,

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(81) responded - TITLA



The State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission

Public Session Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
September 28, 2017

    10,20;15:8;17:2,5,11,
    15,19,21,23;22:12,23;
    24:2,5;26:23;30:20,24;
    31:3,8,19;32:7,10,16,
    19,24;34:3;37:8,18,23;
    38:3,5,8,12,16,20,22,
    24;39:7;41:16,19;48:8;
    57:9;59:17;62:11;63:6,
    9;64:8,19,22,25;65:4,7,
    9,11,18;67:5,7,11,15,
    17,19;70:4,8,11,15,19,
    21,23;71:2,6,11,15,17,
    19,25;72:3,11,16,19,
    22;73:1,3,5
Title (3) 5:23;17:8,9
today (3) 10:8;11:8;
    48:12
together (2) 21:19;47:9
told (1) 49:8
Tom (7) 4:5;22:13;
    34:5;37:11;40:5;48:7,
    14
Tom's (1) 41:8
took (1) 31:23
tool (1) 49:5
top (5) 20:8,12;21:24;
    25:18;26:18
track (1) 23:25
tracking (1) 37:20
trademark (1) 59:16
traditional (2) 46:1;
    68:20
transactions (5) 14:13,
    15,16;25:13,16
transfer (2) 64:6;66:24
tree (2) 57:17,17
trial (1) 11:10
trivia (1) 4:14
true (1) 25:20
trust (1) 61:3
try (3) 7:13;27:22;
    49:23
trying (3) 20:24;43:15,
    17
Tuesday (1) 4:8
turn (1) 47:23
tweaked (1) 69:2
tweaks (1) 69:11
two (9) 7:4,4,16;11:1,2,
    14;35:24;38:1;68:25
type (5) 23:11;31:16;
    53:15,21;54:1
types (1) 50:11

U

unanimously (6) 4:2;
    17:24;38:25;67:20;
    70:24;71:20
unclear (1) 15:23
under (13) 5:23;18:6;
    23:16;35:18;39:19;
    43:22,23;44:1;65:14;

    66:18,19;67:1;68:21
undergoing (1) 48:15
undergraduate (1) 4:9
underlined (1) 18:9
underlining (4) 18:9,10,
    21;35:22
underlying (2) 14:9;
    57:3
understands (1) 5:21
underway (1) 34:21
unless (5) 7:19;13:7;
    37:5;61:24;66:15
unused (1) 24:17
up (34) 5:4;6:11,20;
    8:8;11:1,10;12:12,18;
    14:19,21;16:8;19:7,11;
    20:13;21:1,1;23:19,21;
    26:18;27:4;35:20;37:3;
    40:17;43:15;47:18;
    49:12;51:15,19;52:7,
    14;57:1,6,7;64:10
update (1) 6:1
updated (1) 47:4
upon (1) 70:5
use (5) 20:10;21:2;
    31:10;53:13;54:15
used (3) 4:14,14;5:1
user (1) 53:22
using (1) 48:17
utilized (1) 61:23

V

value (1) 21:15
varied (1) 31:15
VC (1) 41:23
versa (1) 50:15
version (3) 18:12,22;
    58:9
versus (4) 5:12;62:25;
    64:11;68:17
vice (1) 50:15
view (6) 39:18;40:19;
    51:16;52:10;55:22,24
violating (1) 25:3
vitals (3) 52:10,11;56:1
vote (3) 31:24;40:16;
    68:7
Voter (11) 4:8,10,18;
    5:5,7;6:7,25;7:2,13;
    12:11;69:1
voters (3) 4:17;7:3;61:2

W

wait (2) 40:3;63:4
waive (3) 22:19;33:15;
    36:18
waiver (5) 22:20;23:7;
    32:21;33:20;36:23
waivers (1) 21:18
walk (1) 18:5
wants (4) 23:13;40:19;

    64:11,12
watch (1) 5:15
way (21) 4:23;6:16;
    7:13;12:16,22;13:1;
    16:7;18:10,22;22:22,
    23;23:25;37:12;39:8,
    14;48:20;55:2,4,8;
    61:23;69:18
website (2) 61:10;
    69:25
websites (1) 56:22
week (1) 6:2
weigh (1) 23:13
whatnot (1) 52:3
what's (5) 4:13;18:20;
    45:16;58:6;65:21
whereas (1) 52:24
Whereupon (1) 73:7
whole (3) 4:21;42:6;
    50:22
wish (1) 10:10
withdraw (2) 32:2,4
withdraws (3) 32:6,11,
    12
within (3) 15:12;24:12;
    58:11
without (5) 15:19;16:7;
    40:20;44:15;47:1
won (1) 12:23
wonder (2) 31:16;34:7
word (10) 4:13;16:22,
    23;17:8;31:9,11,14;
    32:21,25;72:8
words (4) 23:3,10;
    24:23;61:1
work (10) 14:23;39:8;
    40:22;47:25;49:22;
    51:7,21;64:20;66:2;
    69:22
working (7) 7:3;14:20;
    21:22;22:24;47:15;
    48:2;53:18
works (6) 28:1;41:1,1;
    49:9;54:4;64:7
worry (1) 19:17
wrap (1) 19:7
wrapped (1) 11:10
write (1) 19:8
written (1) 37:12
wrote (2) 35:15,16

Y

year (2) 11:18;52:21
years (1) 54:24
you-all (1) 16:9
Yuma (1) 4:19

1

1 (4) 42:10,10;43:22;
    44:5
10 (2) 24:12;58:12

10:45 (1) 65:12
106 (1) 22:10
107 (1) 43:7
109 (1) 70:2
10th (1) 5:8
11:38 (1) 65:17
11:46 (1) 73:5
11:47 (1) 73:8
111 (2) 69:11;70:2
11th (1) 5:13
12 (1) 5:23
123 (1) 59:5
14 (1) 58:12
150 (1) 66:24
16 (2) 58:23;59:1
16-941 (2) 39:3;68:1
16-941B (1) 68:19
16-941d (1) 53:1
16-942B (2) 68:1,19
16-953 (1) 35:20
16-958 (1) 68:1
17 (1) 58:24

2

2 (4) 18:9,11;34:5;
    42:11
20 (1) 68:23
2014 (3) 55:12,13;
    68:16
2016 (6) 6:6,13;11:22;
    50:10,13;51:13
2017 (4) 3:5,8,15;10:22
2018 (2) 7:25;34:22
22nd (1) 10:22
28 (1) 3:5
29 (2) 11:22;43:19
2nd (4) 63:24;64:6;
    66:18,25

3

3 (1) 37:24
30 (1) 26:13
30th (1) 59:8
31 (1) 3:8
31st (3) 3:14;48:23;
    59:8

4

4 (1) 22:16
40 (1) 4:17
402.01 (1) 13:5

5

50 (1) 4:17
501c4 (1) 52:15
501c4s (1) 52:8
5C (1) 41:25

6

60 (5) 34:21;68:7;
    70:10;71:4,7
60-plus (1) 57:16

7

7 (2) 43:6,7

8

8 (1) 43:3
80 (1) 56:12

9

9:30 (1) 3:5
942 (1) 39:3
956 (1) 39:3
957 (1) 39:4
990 (5) 52:14,19,21;
    53:2,11

Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com

(82) Title - 990



CITIZENS CLEAN ELECTIONS COMMISSION  
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

November 16, 2017 
Announcements:  

 The public can view Commission meetings live via the internet at
www.livestream.com/cleanelections.  A link is available on our website.

 The Auditor General’s Office completed their audit of the 2016 election cycle. They reviewed
monies in, payments into, and expenditures of the Clean Elections Fund and found no
instances of noncompliance or significant deficiencies. (Attachment A)

Voter Education: 

 Monday, November 6th, the Commission launched the new “ID at the Polls” tool. This
tool helps voters identify the proper Identification to take with them on Election Day. It is
available on our website under announcements.

 On November 2nd, Gina attended the Arizona Center for Disability Law’s planning
meeting for a Voter Empowerment Day.

 Alec and Stephanie attended Maricopa County’s Disability Advocates Roundtable on
Tuesday, November 14th.

 Gina presented at the Arizona Association of Counties Annual Conference on
Wednesday November 15th.

 Gina served as a panelist for the Arizona Students’ Association Voting Rights Forum on
Wednesday, November 15th.

2018 Candidate Information: 

 Candidates can start applying for 2018 funding as early as January 2, 2018.

 Participating Legislative Candidates: 37

 Participating Statewide Candidates: 17

 Clean Elections Training Workshops: 8

Enforcement – 2017:

Complaints Pending:  3
 MUR 17-01 – Jesus Rubalcava – on today’s agenda.
 MUR 17-02 – Federation for Children, Inc. – Response Received
 MUR 17-03 – Federation for Children, Inc. – Pending Response

Enforcement – 2014:

Complaints Pending:  3
 MUR 14-006, -015 (consolidated/conciliated):  Horne - pending completion of items in

conciliation agreement.
o MUR 14-007: Legacy Foundation Action Fund (LFAF) – Oral Argument was held

Monday, September 11, 2017.  For details see below.
 MUR 14-027: Veterans for a Strong America (VSA)

ITEM III



     
 

Miscellaneous  

 UPDATE: The Arizona Advocacy Network filed a lawsuit November 15, 2017  against 
the State, the Commission, the Secretary of State and the Governor’s Regulatory review 
council on behalf of a consortium of plaintiffs including several lawmakers.  A copy of the 
Complaint is here: 
https://d3n8a8pro7vhmx.cloudfront.net/arizonaadvocacynetwork/pages/1865/attachment
s/original/1510771053/SB_1516_Verified_Complaint_Conform_Copy.pdf?1510771053 

A copy of the press release is here: 
http://www.azadvocacy.org/we_re_suing_to_protect_clean_elections 

 An independent investigator hired by the Attorney General to review the Secretary of 
State’s trouble-plagued distribution of the 2016 special election publicity pamphlet 
released his reports. Arizona Republic Reporter Dustin Gardiner’s story is available at 
this link:   http://www.azcentral.com/story/news/politics/arizona/2017/10/26/investigator-
arizona-secretary-state-violated-law-but-faces-no-penalties/800415001/.  The report is 
available at that same link.  

 See the Money began public beta testing.  You can participate and give feedback at 
seethemoney.gov.  

 Independent attorneys hired by the Attorney General’s office to address a Complaint 
against former Attorney General Horne issued a report and order.  This report is part of a 
companion complaint to Commission MURs 14-006 and 015 filed with the Secretary of 
State.  The attorneys ordered amendment of the former attorney general’s campaign 
finance reports and deemed the $10,000 fine paid by Horne sufficient.  Nevertheless, 
Mr. Horne agreed, as part of the conciliation, to do whatever he was ordered to in the 
companion complaint, subject to any appeal, or the Commission could proceed against 
him. We are monitoring that situation. A copy of the Order, as well as the Conciliation, 
are available on our website:  http://www.azcleanelections.gov/en/about-us/horne-
enforcement. 

 Effective recently, the Assistant Attorneys General assigned the Commission have been 
moved out of the Solicitor General’s section and into the Agency Counsel section.  So 
far, service has been as before.  I will be working with our assigned Assistant Attorneys 
General to determine any changes that effect the Commission, including details of the 
reporting structure of their new section.  The Commission had been represented by the 
Solicitor General’s office since its inception or soon thereafter.  

 



2910 NORTH 44th STREET • SUITE 410 • PHOENIX, ARIZONA  85018 • (602) 553-0333 • FAX (602) 553-0051

October 5, 2017 

Members of the Arizona State Legislature 

The Honorable Doug Ducey, Governor 

Mr. Steve M. Titla, Chairman 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission 

The Office of the Auditor General has performed a compliance and internal control review of the Citizens 
Clean Elections Commission (Commission). This review was conducted under the authority vested in the 
Auditor General by Arizona Revised Statutes §§16-949(E) and 41-1279.03. The Office is required to perform 
a review of the revenues and expenditures of the Citizens Clean Elections Fund at least every 4 years. This 
review of the Commission was completed for the 2016 election cycle.  

Our review consisted primarily of inquiries, observations, and selected tests of internal control policies and 
procedures, accounting records, and related documents. The review was more limited than would be 
necessary to give an opinion on compliance or on internal controls. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on compliance or on the effectiveness of internal controls or ensure that all deficiencies in internal 
controls are disclosed.  

Specifically, we reviewed monies in, payments into, and expenditures of the Citizens Clean Elections Fund. 

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or significant deficiencies in internal control 
to report; however, our review disclosed minor internal control deficiencies that we have communicated 
directly to the Commission’s staff.  

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the members of the Arizona State Legislature, 
Governor, Commission, and management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than the specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record, and its distribution is not 
limited. 

Should you have any questions concerning our review, please let us know. 

Sincerely, 

Debbie Davenport 
Auditor General 

ATTACHMENT A



ITEM IV



































ITEM IV - EXHIBITS

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



Conciliation Agreement - 1 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

STATE OF ARIZONA 

CITIZENS CLEAN ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

American Federation for Children, Inc., 

Respondent 

MUR No. 17-02 & 17-03 

[Proposed] CONCILIATION AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 16-957(A), the Citizens Clean Elections Commission (the “Commission”) 

and American Federation for Children, Inc. (Respondent) enter this Conciliation Agreement (the 

“Conciliation Agreement”) in the manner described below: 

A. Respondent did not timely file campaign finance reports required by the Clean

Elections Act for spending related to particular offices.  See A.R.S. § 16-941(D); -16-

958. These expenditures totaled ___ and were related to legislative candidates in

District 28 and District 26.  Respondent made expenditures as identified in Complaints 

MUR 17-02 and 17-03.  See Exhibits 1, 2.  The expenditures identified in these 

complaints should have been reported on September 1, 2017 and November 1, 2017 

respectively. The facts are sufficient to find reason to believe Respondent may have 

committed violations of the Citizens Clean Elections Act. 

B. A.R.S. § 16-941(D) states that “any person who makes independent expenditures 

related to a particular office” in excess of certain amounts must report such 

expenditures to the Secretary of State.  A.R.S. § 16-956(A)(7) provides that the 

1
ITEM V



Conciliation Agreement - 2 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Commission has authority to enforce the Act and Rules, to include the assessment of 

penalties that apply for failure to file reports. 

C. On October 2, 2017, the Commission received the Complaint in MUR 17-02 regarding

Respondent’s failure to file a report required by A.R.S. § 16-941, -958.

D. After receiving the Complaint the Commission Staff reviewed information related to

Respondent’s Campaign Finance activity provided by the Respondent who had

attempted to comply with a different statute, A.R.S. § 16-926.   Respondent provided

information indicating it would have timely reported information pursuant to A.R.S. § 16-

926 had the Campaign Finance Reporting System accepted that information.

E. Reports pursuant to A.R.S. § 16-926 are not the same as those required by the Act, are

required at different and different spending levels.

F. On November 2, 2017, the Commission received the Complaint in MUR 17-03

regarding Respondent’s failure to file a report required by A.R.S. § 16-941, -958.

G. This Conciliation Agreement concludes the Commission’s enforcement proceeding

respecting the Complaints.

WHEREFORE, the Commission enters the following orders in lieu of any other action regarding this 

matter: 

1. The Commission has jurisdiction over persons subject to A.R.S. §§ 16-941(D) and -

958, including political committees.  Respondent avows that the Campaign Finance

Reporting System did not prompt it to make any reports as called for in those statutes,

although the Commission’s effort provides alternative electronic means of filing.

2. Pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 16-941(D) and -958 any person who makes an independent

expenditure above a threshold set forth in the Clean Elections Act must file reports

required by the person and that under A.R.S. § 16-942(B) the statutory penalty for any

reporting violation on behalf of a candidate is up to $160 per day up to twice the value

of the unreported amount.

2



Conciliation Agreement - 3 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

3. The Commission agrees not to impose on a fine in these MURs on the following

conditions:

a. Respondent file complete expenditure reports for each MUR on the form attached

as Exhibit 3 with the Commission via email by 5 p.m. Friday November 17, 2017.

b. Respondent agrees to file complete expenditure reports regarding expenditures

that identify candidates for state or legislative office on the form attached as Exhibit

3, or in the Secretary of State’s Campaign Finance Reporting System if available.

4. Respondent shall be in breach of this Agreement upon the occurrence of any of the

following:

a. Respondent provides false information to the Commission, including regarding the

expenditures subject to the Complaints.

b. Respondent fails to abide by any provision of this agreement.

5. In the event of breach hereunder, at the option of the Commission, all potential

penalties dating from time of each Complaint shall be immediately due and payable.  In

addition, interest shall accrue on the unpaid balance from the date that the payments

become due and payable.  Interest shall accrue at the statutory rate of ten percent

(10%) pursuant to A.R.S. § 44-1201(A).

6. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent any state agency

which issues licenses for any profession from requiring that the debt in issue be paid in

full before said agency will issue Respondent a new license.

7. The Commission may waive any condition of default without waiving any other

condition of default and without waiving its rights to full, timely future performance of

the conditions waived.

8. In the event legal action is necessary to enforce collection hereunder, Respondent shall

additionally pay all costs and expenses of collection, including without limitation,

reasonable attorneys’ fees in an amount equal to thirty-five percent (35%) of monies

recovered.

3



Conciliation Agreement - 4 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

9. This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State of Arizona.

10. In the event that any paragraph or provision hereof shall be ruled unenforceable, all

other provisions hereof shall be unaffected thereby.

11. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties regarding the

subject matter.  This Agreement shall not be modified or amended except in a writing

signed by all parties hereto.

12. This Agreement shall not be subject to assignment.

13. No delay, omission or failure by the Commission to exercise any right or power

hereunder shall be construed to be a waiver or consent of any breach of any of the

terms of this Agreement by the Respondent.

14. By entering into this Agreement, the Respondent does not waive any rights, claims,

defenses or arguments in any subsequent proceeding before the Commission or any

agency, court or other tribunal.  Respondent does not agree that the expenditures in

question were independent expenditures, but in the interest of transparency agrees to

the terms herein.

15. Respondent has obtained independent legal advice in connection with the execution of

this Agreement or have freely chosen not to do so.  Any rule construing this Agreement

against the drafter is inapplicable and is waived.

16. This Agreement shall be void unless executed by the Respondent and delivered to the

Commission not later than Friday, November 17, 2017 at 5 p.m.

17. All proceedings commenced by the Commission in these two matters will be terminated

and the matter closed upon receipt of the final payment of the civil penalty and

compliance with the other terms set forth in this Agreement.

18. The Commission authorizes the Executive Director to sign this agreement.

Dated this ___ day ___, 2017. 

By:   
Thomas M. Collins, Executive Director 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission 

4



Conciliation Agreement - 5 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

By: 
Respondent 

5



EXHIBIT 1

6



7



8



9



EXHIBIT 2
10



11



E
xh

ib
it

 A

Exhibit A 

12



13



14



Name: 

Address:  City State Zip 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §§16-941(D),-956, -958, and A.A.C. R2-20-109(F) 

CITIZENS CLEAN ELECTIONS COMMISSION 
Independent Expenditure Report  

Name of Authorized Agent:  Telephone Number: E-mail Address: 

Telephone Number:  Fax Number:  

Authorized Agent Address (if different from above):  City State Zip 

All persons, including corporations, limited liability companies, and labor organizations, are required to file independent expenditure reports under 
A.R.S. §§ 16-941(D); -958 & Ariz. Admin. Code R2-20-109(F).  Please fill out, scan and return to the Arizona Citizens Clean Elections Commission, 
ccec@azcleanelections.gov. 

Forms received within 24 hours of the date of expenditure will be considered timely. 

Failure to file the form and submit the information required subjects an entity that makes independent expenditures to penalties under the Clean Elections Act 
unless the entity receives an exemption from the Commission. Exemption forms are available at www.azcleanelections.gov.  

Please contact ccec@azcleanelections.gov or (602) 364-3477 with questions. 

*The independent expenditure date is the date when the literature or advertisement is distributed. The independent expenditure may be paid for at a later date as
reported on committee campaign finance reports required by A.R.S. §16-915.

I, the undersigned, certify that the above statements are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief:  

□ Amended Report

__________________________________________________________

Signature of Authorized Agent

09/2016 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

□ Received _______

Date of Expenditure* (i.e. 5/30/2016)  Amount of Expenditure (i.e. $5,000.00)  Candidate Supported /Opposed  Oppose 

□

□

□

Support 

□

□

□

□ □

□ □

EXHIBIT 3

15



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 1

ITEM V - Backup Docs



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 2



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 3



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 4



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 5



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 6



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 7



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 8



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 9



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 10



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 11



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 12



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 13



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 14



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 15



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 16



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 17



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 18



MUR 17-002 and MUR 17-003 19



MUR 17-002 20



MUR 17-002 21



MUR 17-002 22



MUR 17-002 23



MUR 17-002 24



MUR 17-002 25



MUR 17-002 26



MUR 17-002 27



MUR 17-002 28



MUR 17-002 29



MUR 17-002 30



MUR 17-002 31



MUR 17-002 32



MUR 17-002 33



MUR 17-002 34



MUR 17-002 35



MUR 17-002 36



MUR 17-002 37



MUR 17-002 38



MUR 17-002 39



MUR 17-002 40



MUR 17-002 41



MUR 17-002 42



MUR 17-002 43



MUR 17-002 44



MUR 17-002 45



MUR 17-002 46



MUR 17-002 47



MUR 17-002 48



MUR 17-002 49



MUR 17-002 50



MUR 17-002 51



MUR 17-002 52



MUR 17-002 53



MUR 17-002 54



MUR 17-002 55



MUR 17-002

56



MUR 17-002 57



MUR 17-002 58



MUR 17-002 59



MUR 17-002 60



MUR 17-002 61



MUR 17-002 62



MUR 17-002 63



MUR 17-002 64



MUR 17-002 65



MUR 17-002 66



MUR 17-002 67



MUR 17-002 68



MUR 17-002 69



MUR 17-002 70



MUR 17-002 71



MUR 17-002 72



MUR 17-003 73



MUR 17-003 74



MUR 17-003 75



MUR 17-003 76



MUR 17-003 77



MUR 17-003 78



MUR 17-003 79



MUR 17-003 80



MUR 17-003 81



MUR 17-003 82



MUR 17-003 83



MUR 17-003 84



MUR 17-003 85



MUR 17-003 86



MUR 17-003 87



MUR 17-003 88



MUR 17-003 89



MUR 17-003 90



MUR 17-003 91



1 

State of Arizona 
Citizens Clean Elections Commission 

1616 W. Adams - Suite 110 - Phoenix, Arizona  85007 - Tel (602) 364-3477 - Fax (602) 364-3487 - www.azcleanelections.gov 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Commissioners 

From: Tom Collins, Executive Director 

Date: 11/14/17 

Subject: Authorization Request to Enter Intergovernmental Agreement with Maricopa 
County 

Voter Education Director Gina Roberts and the office of Maricopa County Recorder Adrian 
Fontes have been in discussions on ways to improve voter education for voters in this state by 
providing more information on a timely basis. To that end, I am seeking authorization to 
complete and enter an Intergovernmental Agreement with Maricopa County to set up an API or 
web service to provide voters with voter registration, district information, ballot status and 
polling place information through the Commission’s various voter education platforms (i.e. 
smart phone app and web site). Our intention is simply to retrieve data that would be presented to 
the voter through existing services on the Recorder’s website, and to present that data to the 
voter through our voter education tools. CEC would not be storing/retaining any of the data. 

Examples of existing data include: 

 https://recorder.maricopa.gov/pollingplace/ 

https://recorder.maricopa.gov/pollingplace/getdistrict.aspx 

https://recorder.maricopa.gov/earlyvotingballot/voterregistrationlookup.aspx 

https://recorder.maricopa.gov/earlyvotingballot/earlyvotingballotstatus.aspx 

https://recorder.maricopa.gov/provisionalballotstatus/ 

We currently have the ability to provide voters with their congressional, legislative and 
supervisorial districts (and therefore candidate information) across the state, and most recently 
have expanded to include council districts for the following cities: Phoenix; Mesa; Chandler; 

Doug Ducey 
Governor 

Thomas M. Collins 
Executive Director 

Steve M. Titla 
Chair 

Damien R. Meyer 
Mark S. Kimble 
Galen D. Paton 
Amy B. Chan 
Commissioners 

ITEM VII



2 
 

Tempe; Gilbert; Glendale; Scottsdale; Peoria; Surprise. We accomplish this through a third party 
API (Cicero). Expanding our information base with Maricopa County ensures that all voters in 
that county can get information on candidates and elections.  

I do not currently anticipate any cost to such an IGA. It will be reviewed as to form by the 
Arizona Attorney General’s Office.  

 



1 

Citizens Clean Elections Commission Report 

To: Commissioners  

From: Clean Elections Staff 

Subject: 2018 State Legislative Agenda  

The purpose of this report is to outline the Commission’s legislative agenda for the 

2018 Arizona State Legislature Regular Session.  After approval by the 

Commission, the agenda will provide guidance to Commission staff respecting the 

Commission’s goals for the session.  The session begins in January.   

Staff will continue to brief the Commission, as it has in the past, on developments 

in the Legislature during the session.  The Commission is expressly authorized to 

make recommendations on changes in law.  A.R.S. § 16-956.  

Principles and Priorities 

Staff recommends that the Commission endorse the following principles and 

priorities for the session.  

Oppose efforts to defund, eliminate or limit the Citizens Clean Elections Act 

and/or the Commission.  Over several sessions, members of the legislature have 

proposed measures that seek to defund, eliminate or limit the authority of the Act 

or the Commission itself.  The Commission has historically opposed these efforts 

on the grounds that they are typically poorly constructed, misleading or otherwise 

ill-considered.  Staff recommends the Commission oppose legislation (in whatever 

ITEM VIII

1



2 

form) that seeks to defund, eliminate, or limit the CCEA and/or Commission.   

This session, staff anticipates one or more bills that will invade the Commission’s 

authority and likely violate the Voter Protection Act’s terms requiring that 

amendments to the Act advance the purpose of the underlying Act. 

 Superseding 16-941(D), -942(B)  and 16-901.01:  Legislation may be

considered that requires independent expenditure reports virtually identical

to those in 16-941(D) at all levels, including a redundant report at the state

level. Likewise a supervening of A.R.S. 16-901.01 is anticipated.   The VPA

expressly prohibits superseding legislation without a three-fourths vote and

without furthering the purpose of the act.  Ariz. Const. Art. 1, Pt. 1, § 1(14).

 Limiting enforcement:  The Legislature cannot, consistent with the

Constitution enact legislation that limits the power of the Commission to

enforce the Act or purport to make portions of the Act ineffective.   This

includes the power of the Commission to make rules governing the

enforcement of the Act and production, distribution and development of

Voter Education and other Clean Elections programs.

 Monitor Expanding the Elections Procedures Manual:  The Procedures

manual is being drafted currently.  It is not clear (and will not be for some

time) whether that drafting will lead to further potential legislative changes

or their scope.

2



3 

 Monitor Proposed Legislation Regarding Current Campaign and Election

Laws:  The Legislature continues to expand, contract, and tweak current

campaign finance and election related laws.  Staff will continue to monitor

and support and/or oppose each action as it is introduced consistent with the

principles in this memo.

Support Improvements to Voter Education and Access.  The Commission has 

supported efforts to enhance voter education and participation through legislation 

that advances the anti-corruption and public participation values that undergird the 

Act.  Staff recommends the Commission express its support for legislation that 

advances these aims.    

3



Proposed Meeting Dates 

January - June 2018 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

Month Date State Holiday – Office Closed 
January 18

th
   New Year’s Day, Jan 1

st
 & MLK Day, Jan 15

th
  

February 15
th

  President’s Day, Feb 19
th

   

March 22
nd

    

 

April 19
th

    

 

May  31
st
    Memorial Day, May 28

th
  

 

 

June 28
th

    

 

 

    

 

 

  

 

 

 

During the months of January – June 2018, staff estimates commission 

meetings will be held once a month.  All meeting dates are on Thursday and 

scheduled to begin at 9:30 a.m. 

 

In the event additional meetings are required, Staff will work individually 

with each Commissioner to determine availability and ensure we have a 

quorum for the meeting.  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
         

                 ITEM IX 
          

                                      


	Agenda - November 16th
	Item II- Sept 28th Mtg Minutes
	Item III - ED Report Updated
	ED Report 11-16-17 - DRAFT
	Item III - ED Report
	Item III - ED Report
	ED Report - Attachment A Auditor General Letter



	Item IV - Rubalcava PCR - MUR17-01
	Item IV - Rubalcava PCR Exhibits - MUR17-01
	Item V - MUR 17-02 and 03 - docs
	Ltr to Reagan-Brnovich - LaSota 08-06-17
	MUR17-002 - Gaona Ltr 10-11-17
	MUR17-002 - Response LaSota 10-18-17
	MUR17-002 - Response LaSota 11-08-17
	MUR17-002 -Reply fr Gaona - 10-30-17
	MUR17-003 - Complaint Notice - 11-02-17
	MUR17-003 - Response LaSota 11-13-17

	Item V - Proposed Conciliation Revised - AFFC
	REV PROPOSED CONCILIATION - AFFC.pdf
	Binder1
	Complaint MUR17-02 - Exhibit 1 - Gaona Sept 28th Ltr
	Complaint MUR17-03 - Exhibit 2 - Gaona Ltr Nov 2- AFC Complaint
	CCEC - Ex A.pdf
	Exhibit 1
	Exhibit 2


	Conciliation Exhibit 3 - IE Report Form


	Item VII - IGA w Maricopa Cty
	Item VIII - 2018 Leg Agenda
	Item IX- Proposed 2018 Comm Mtg Dates

	undefined: Off
	Amended Report: Off
	Name: 
	Address: 
	City: 
	State: 
	Zip: 
	Telephone Number: 
	Fax Number: 
	Name of Authorized Agent: 
	Telephone Number_2: 
	Email Address: 
	Authorized Agent Address if different from above: 
	City_2: 
	State_2: 
	Zip_2: 
	Date of Expenditure ie 5302016Row1: 
	Amount of Expenditure ie 500000Row1: 
	Candidate Supported OpposedRow1: 
	SupportRow1: 
	OpposeRow1: 
	Date of Expenditure ie 5302016Row2: 
	Amount of Expenditure ie 500000Row2: 
	Candidate Supported OpposedRow2: 
	SupportRow2: 
	OpposeRow2: 
	Date of Expenditure ie 5302016Row3: 
	Amount of Expenditure ie 500000Row3: 
	Candidate Supported OpposedRow3: 
	SupportRow3: 
	OpposeRow3: 
	Date of Expenditure ie 5302016Row4: 
	Amount of Expenditure ie 500000Row4: 
	Candidate Supported OpposedRow4: 
	SupportRow4: 
	OpposeRow4: 
	Date of Expenditure ie 5302016Row5: 
	Amount of Expenditure ie 500000Row5: 
	Candidate Supported OpposedRow5: 
	SupportRow5: 
	OpposeRow5: 


